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Photo 42: Detail of multi-paned window of workshop fr the interior.
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Photo 44: View of Hillside Cabins.
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Photo 48: Detail of balcony of Hillside Cabin #13.
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Photo 49: View of rear facade of Hillside Cabin #13.

t 50: Interior view of bedro:m area bvaillsﬁide Cabin #13.
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Photo 52: Restroom and shower building in the Hillside Cabins area.
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hto 53: View of the "Miner's Shack." Nte red metal shetinn roof.
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Photo 54: View of gable end fac}ade' 0 theyTK/-Iinf!:r's“‘Shaéi(".
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View of smaller bedrock mortar near Paraiso Sr1g gate.

Photo 57

ing Paraiso Spring into valley.

View from hills surround

Photo 58
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RECENT PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE COMPLEX
1990-November 2003




Photo 1: Paraiso Springs ébrhpex from brochure image (undated, circa 1980s).
Photo courtesy Monterey County Parks.

Springs, 1992. Photo contributed by Josie Lopez.
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Photo 3: vergr?:(:,n Cottage on ft, ex1sud onnght, caO. hto
contributed by Josie Lopez.

D-31




'Z2d0] 2150 AQ paInqLiuod 010y J

Al st g

S0661 BOTIO JYBLI UO

o8po[ BunsIxs

[4

19 U0 98810 usd1dIdAy ¢S 010Ud

D-32



Photo 6: Evergreen Cottage, front facade, 1997. Photo contributed by Josie Lopez.

Photo 7 preckels ttage and valley view, circa 1990s. ho contriute by Josie

Lopez.
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Photo 8: maller cottages, circa 1990s. Left to right:‘ yps, Roie, uen
Vista, and Antlers. Photo contributed by Josie Lopez.

Photo :yprus and Romie Coags, circa 1990s. Photo contributed y Josie

Lopez.
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Photo 11: tlers ag frot facde Taken om Rutkoff video (2003).
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Photo 13: Sign on Antlers Cottage. Taken from Rtkoﬁ’ vide (003). -
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Photo 15: Hillside Cottage, front facade. Taken from Rutkoff video (2003).
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Poto 19: Pioneer Cottage, front and side facades. Taken from Rutkoff video (2003).
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Photo 20: Spreckels Cottage, front facade and entrance. Taken from Rutkoff video
(2003).

Photo 21: Rear facade of Spreckels Cottage. Taken from Rutkoff video (2003).
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Photo 23: Palm Court Cabin 37. Taken from Rutkoff video (203).
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APPENDIX E: DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION FORMS




State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #

PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial

NRHP Status Code

Other Listings

Review Code Reviewer Date
Page _1_ of 1 Resource Name or # _Paraiso Springs
P1. Other ldentifier:
P2. Location: X Not for Publication ___ Unrestricted *a. County Monterey County
and (P2b and P2c or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.)
*b. USGS 7.5 Quad:  Paraiso Springs  Date: 1981 T i R ; 1/4 of 1/4 of Sec  ; BM
c. Address: 34358 Paraiso Springs Road City: Soledad Zip: 93960

d. UTM: West: 6 45 800mE/ 40 21 820mN South: 6 46 575mE/ 40 21 650mN
East: 6 47 150mE/40 21 900mN  North: 6 46 628mE/ 40 22 350mN

e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate)
End of Paraiso Springs Road

*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries.)
The property consists of 280 acres of land on the eastern side of the Santa Lucia Range. It includes a small valley, and extends
into the hills surrounding it on three sides. The existing structures on the subject property include 15 vernacular cabins along the
hillside, a changing room, a recreation room, nine mobile homes, a lodge, a workshop, a yurt compound, a miner's shack, and
several small outbuildings. In addition the complex includes a swimming pool, a “conversation pool,” an indoor bath, and the Old
Bath area. The baths and pools are fed by water pumped from numerous hot, warm, and cold mineral springs. Many historic
resort structures that were built in the late 1800s and early 1900s have now been lost.
*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List atiributes and codes.) HPS5 (Rental Cabins), HP39 (Health Spa), AH3 (Landscaping)

AP4 (Bedrock Mortars)

*P4. Resources Present: - __Building Structure Object District __Element of District ~ _XSite _ Other

P5a. Photo or drawing (Photo required for buildings, structures, objects.) P5b. Description of Photo: (View, date, accession #)
View of Lodge area from entrance road

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and Sources

Historic Prehistoric Both X
Site of prehistoric Native American occupation,
historic use beginning in 1790s, commercial resort
from 1870s up to today.

*P7. Owner and Address:

Thompson Holdings
PO qu: 2015
Horsham, PA 19044

*P8. Recorded by:
Robert Cartier
Archaeological Resource Management
496 North 5" Street
San Jose, CA 95112
*P9. Date Recorded: 4/7/04
*P10. Survey Type: Intensive

*P11. Report Citation: (Cite Survey Report and other sources, or enter "none.")
Cartier, 2004: Evaluation of Historical and Archaeological Resources at the Paraiso Springs in the County of
Monterey
* Attachments: __None X Location Map _X Sketch Map X_Continuation Sheet __Building, Structure, and Object Record
XArchaeological Record __ District Record __Linear Feature Record _Milling Station Record ___Rock Art Record __Artifact
Record __Photographic Record __ Other (List):

DPR 523A (1/95) *Required Information




State of California - The Resources Agency
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION Primary #
Trinomial

ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITE RECORD

Page 2 of 7 Resource Name or # Paraiso Springs
*A1. Dimensions: a. Length: 1,300m (W-E) b. Width:660m (N-S)
Method of Measurement: paced taped ___visual estimate _X_ other: | Measured on topo map

Method of Determination (Check any that apply): __Arifact ___ Features __Soil __ Vegetation __ Topography
—Cutbank ___Animalburrow ___ Excavation _X__ Property boundary __ Other (Explain):
Reliability of Determination: _X__High __ Medium __lLow Explain:
Limitations (Check any that apply): __ Restricted access __Paved/built over __Site limits incompletely defined
—_Disturbances ___ Vegetation ___Other (Explain):
A2, Depth: _ _ None_ _  Unknown_X__ Method of Determination:
*A3. Human Remains: __Present __ Absent _ Possible _X_Unknown (Explain):
*A4. Features (Number, briefly describe, indicate size, list associated cultural constituents, and show location of each
feature on sketch map.): ~ Three prehistoric bedrock mortars, each containing multiple cupules. Locations
indicated on attached sketch map. These BRMs were previously recorded as MNT-302 and MNT-303
Known historic features include historically modified and regulated natural hot springs.

*AS. Cultural Constituents (Describe and quantify artifacts, ecofacts, cultural residues, etc., not associated with features):

No additional prehistoric cultural materials were noted, however it appears likely that there is an as of yet

unknown subsurface deposit. Additional subsurface cultural materials associated with historic activities

at the springs are also likely present.

*AB. Were specimens collected? _X_No __Yes (Ifyes, attach Artifact Record or Catalog and identify where

specimens are curated.)

*A7. Site Condition: __Good __Fair _X_Poor (Describe disturbances): Historic structural components have

largely been demolished or destroyed, prehistoric components likely heavily disturbed by historic activity.

*A8. Nearest Water (Type, distance, and direction): ~ Several small springs within the property boundaries.

*A9. Elevation: Ranges from approximately 900 to 1400 feet MSL

A10. Environmental Setting (Describe culturally relevant variables such as fauna, soils, geology, landform, slope, aspect,
exposure, etc.):  Hilly, oak woodland environment, mineral hot springs, abundance of game in historic

times, valley sheltered by hills on three sides.

A11. Historical Information: See Continuation Sheet Pg. 3

*A12. Age: _X _Prehistoric _X_Protohistoric X _1542-1769 _X__1769-1848 _X_1848-1880 _X_1880-1914 _X_1914-1945

X _Post 1945 __ Undetermined Describe position in regional chronology or factual historic dates if known.
Mineral Hot Springs used for therapeutic properties from prehistoric times to the present. Chronological
depth of prehistoric usage unknown.

A13. Interpretations (Discuss data potential, function(s), ethnic affiliation, and other interpretations):
This site has the potential to yield important information about the Esselen Native Americans who once

inhabited this area, and their cultural usage of the springs. In addition, there is the potential for
subsurface cultural deposits dating from historic usage of the springs.

A14. Remarks:

A15. References (Documents, informants, maps, and other references):
See Continuation Sheet Page 4.

A186. Photographs (List subjects, direction of view, accession numbers, or attach a Photograph Record.):
See Attached Photos on Continuation Sheet Page 5.
Original Media/Negatives Kept at: A.RM.
*A17. Form Prepared by: Robert Cartier
Affiliation and Address: Date: 4/7/04
A.R.M.
496 North 5™ Street
San Jose, CA 95112
DPR 523C (1/95) *Required Information




State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #

CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 3 of 7 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) _Paraiso Springs

*Recorded by Archaeological Resource Management Date 4/7/04 Continuation X Update
Continued from A11;

The Paraiso Springs have been utilized by Native Americans since prehistoric times. The earliest recorded historical
usage of the Springs was by the Padres of Soledad Mission. This Mission was founded in 1791 and the Paraiso
Springs were part of the Mission Lands. The Springs continued under the ownership of the church until the 1840s,
when the lands of Mission Soledad were sold by the Mexican Governor of California, Pio Pico, to Feliciano Soberanes.
After the beginning of the American period, Father Joseph Alemany, Archbishop of the Archdiocese of San Francisco
brought suit to attempt to reclaim several different areas of lands owned by the Missions sold by the Mexican
Government. The United States Land Commission agreed that the sales had been illegal, and in 1859 the Lands of
Mission Soledad were returned to the church.

In 1866 the church sold the Paraiso Springs to Mr. Pedro Zabala, a major land holder in Monterey County. They
continued under his ownership until 1874, at which time they were sold to Reeve Bros. and Ledyard Fine, a
partnership which was the first to operate the Springs commercially. The Springs went through a succession of
owners and managers, including Captain J. G. Foster, founder of the Cliff House in San Francisco, and Charles
Romie, a prominent local businessman. A hotel and many small cabins, along with other recreational facilities, were
constructed. The resort grew in popularity through the 1890s and became one most well known hot springs in
California, eventually earning it the title of “the Carlsbad of America.” Also sometime in the 1890s, Claus Spreckels,
known as the “Sugar King,” constructed a cabin at Paraiso for his personal use. The bottled soda water from Paraiso
Springs, billed as “Radio Active Arsenic Spring” water, won a prize at the 1904 World’s Fair in St. Louis, Missouri (Alta
Vista Magazine 1990).

In 1928 the Paraiso Springs were struck by fire, burning down the hotel and several other structures. However, after a
few years the resort was able to reopen. There was a second major fire at Paraiso in 1954, destroying the new hotel
and the Annex. At this time the Springs were owned by the Barrett family. The last long term owners of the Springs
were Warren and Marge Perrine who owned the property from 1971 to 1999, at which time it was sold to Thompson
holdings, the current owners. In November of 2003 all of the historic cabins at Paraiso Springs were demolished.

DPR 523 L *Required Information




State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #

CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 4  of 7 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) _Paraiso Springs

*Recorded by Archaeological Resource Management Date 4/7/04 Continuation X Update
Continued from A15:

LITERATURE CITED AND CONSULTED

Bancroft, H. H.
1888  History of California, Volume VI, 1848-1859. The History Company, San Francisco, California.

Burns, J.
2004 Personal communication with Dr. Jeffrey Burns, Archivist, Roman Catholic Archdiocese of San
Francisco, on March 31, regarding Soledad Mission and Paraiso Springs.

Elliot & Moore
1881 Paraiso Springs, from Many Springs and Pleasure Resorts, clipping on file at the Monterey County
Parks Department.

Gonzales Tribune
1894  Resources of Monterey County & Midwinter Fair Edition of the Gonzales Tribune. Renison & Farley,
Publishers.

Guinn, J. M.
1903  History of the State of California and Biographical Record of the San Benito, Monterey, and San Luis
Obispo Counties. Chapman Publishing Company, Chicago.

Harrison, E. S., Publisher
1889  Monterey County lllustrated: Resources, History, Biography. Souvenir Edition, E. S. Harrison,
Publisher.

Hester, T. R.
1978 Esselen. In Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 8, California. Edited by R. F. Heizer.
Smithsonian Institution, Washington, D.C.

Howe, K.
2003  Furor Over Paraiso Demolitions: Owners Dispute Buildings Historical Value, Admit Failure to Seek
Permit. In The Monterey County Herald, December 8, 2003

O'Donnell, M. H.
1951  Paradise Changes Hands. From The Peninsula Diary section of The Monterey Peninsula Herald

Rodriguez, M.
1990 The Resort That's Always in Hot Water. In Alta Vista Magazine
October 14, 1990

Soledad Bee
1928a Paraiso Springs Razed by Fire. In The Soledad Bee, July 27, 1928.

1928b Tallest Palm Destroyed by Flames. In The Soledad Bee, July 27, 1928.

DPR 523 L *Required Information




State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 5 of 7 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) _Paraiso Springs

*Recorded by Archaeological Resource Management Date 4/7/04 Continuation X Update

Photo 1: Bedrock Mortar 1

Photo 2: Bedrock Mortar 2.

DPR 523 L *Required Information




State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
SKETCH MAP Trinomial
Page 6 of _7 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) ___Paraiso Springs
*Drawn By: _D. Jones Date: __4/7/04
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State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
LOCATION MAP Trinomial
Page 7 of 7 _

*Map Name: _Paraiso Springs CA

Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) __Paraiso Springs
*Scale: _7.5 Minute

1981

*Date of Map:
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Soledad Bee, Friday, July 27, 1928

ParaisoSprings RazedByFire|
Popular .R—(;(—)‘rt To Be| Tallest Palm Des-

Rebnilt At Once With
Bireproof Buildings

( —

Fire, which started from an
overbeated stove in the kitchen
of the main building at Paraiso
Springs, Salinas Valley’s popular
summer resort, -about four o’-
elock Saturday afternvon spread
rapidly and enveloped adjoining
buildings and before it had been
gotten under control had destroy
ed geveral buildings, These in-
cluded the main structure, two
bath houses, garage, dance hall
and some smaller buildings.

_ The telephone comnmunication
i with Sojedad was put out of com-
. mission by the fire and it was

. necessary to motor here to sum-

mon aid. The delay was costly
and omly for the splendid as-
gitance of neighbors, the loss
would have been greater,
Soledad fire department answer-
ed a call for aid and water was
pumped from the plunge which
resulted in preventing  the
spread of the flames to the an-
nex aml another bulding close
tu the buildings that were burn-
ed. The camp cottages on the
hill.and a house escaped the
- flames,
The loss was between $40,000

and $50,000 and approximately’

$26,000 of ‘this was covered by
insuarnce. According to O. B.
Petersen, owner and manuger,
* new fireproof buildings will take
. the.place of -the ones destroyed
. by Saturday’s disastrous fire,
. Several guests lost their be-
" longings in the excitement, - and
; the Peterser families lost nearly
- - all their personal belongings. )

N

. .

The’

troyed By Flames

Magnificent palm trees, over
100 years ald, went before the
flames at Paraiso Springs last
Saturday, One was thé tallest in
California, if not in the United
States. -

G-1




—T¢ninsula Diary -

Paradise

Paralso. pronounced pa-ry-
zoh, means "paradise” and is the
only survivor of several places
so named, according to 1,000

Place Names in California.” Pa- !

raiso Springs is an old estab-
lished resort in southern Mon-
terey County and may be
reached by motor car by turn-
ing 1o the west out of Soledad.
From Monlerey, the motorist
should take advantage of the
River Road geing south and turn
at the Spring's directional road
sign,
L] L +

On Sunday, October 27, the
Monterey County Historical So-
ciety members galhered at PMa-
raiso Springs for a  business
meeting and a talk on the history
of the resort, Mrs, Donald Davies
Jr,, president of the organiza-
tion, presided and introduced Dr.
T. N, Peterson, who for several
Years 1was manager of the
Springs and had made a study of
its past history.

Parajso Springs is at an ele-
vation of 1,400 feet, It has been
called the “Carlsbad of America”
because of. its.soda, sulphur, ar-

senic_and fron Tlneral spripgs.

- . [ ] ] . .

5 1t was n179] thal King Car-

los of Spain granted 20 acres to
the Soledad Mission and it was
known thereafter as the vine-
yard of the Soledad Mission. On

November 19, 1859, the United
States according to the provi-
sions of the act of Congress ap-
proved the grant the 3rd day of
March, 1851, to the Rt. Reverend
Father Joseph Alemany, Roman
Catholle bishop of the diocese,
and issued a patent on the sald
20 acres. The church held titie
to the land until August 16, 1866,
when Pedro Zabala bought the
property for $10,000. Eight years
Jater, Qct. 12, 1874, Mr, Zabala
sold the property—20 acres—
to Reeve Bros. and Ledyard Fine
of Gilroy for $10,442.2],

The formation of the partner-
ship of the Reeve brothers and
Ledyard Fine was the starting
point from which Paraiso
Springs won fame as a resort,
The next owners were the Bry-
ant family who purchased the
Springs on January 2, 1885 for

$15,000, according to Dr. Peter-
sen,

Changes ‘Hands

By MAYO HAYES O’'DONNELL

* & b

In June of 1887 the Bank of
Gilroy foreclosed on a mortgage
and took possession of the prop-
erty, which they resold in April
of 1889 to Charles Ford of Wat-
sonville. Mr. Ford owned Pa-
raiso, putting in many improve-
ments, until his death in August
of 1892, His manager was 8 Mr.
Robinson, whose given name the
speaker did not know, The Ford
estate sold the property to
Charles T. Romle in March, 1889,

Mr. Romie was a native of
Germany and an American by
training and education, and
above all else a Californian, ac-
cording to Guinn's history of the
Central Coast, Most of his prop-
erty In the county was situpted
about seven miles from Soledad,
which was his home from 1875
until his death on January 35,
1904. He was a brother of the
Jate Mrs. David Jacks of Monte-
Tey,

During the time that Mr.
Romile owned Paralso Springs it
was under the management of a
Mr. Schroeder of Salinas. At the
death of Mr. Romie the Paralso
Springs became the property of
his two nephews, Karl and Er-
nest Romie. Karl being a minor

his father, Paul T. Romie, was
appointed his guardlan, On De-
cember 2, 1806, Romle Sr. pe-
titioned the court to give per-
missjon to sell Paraiso, The pe-
{ition was granted. reported Dr,
Petersen, in February of 1907,
" * »

In March of 1907, an auction
was held on the Monterey Coun-
ty Court House steps in Sallnas
and Mr. and Mrs., A, McGowan,
being the highest bidders, be-
came the new owners ol Paraiso
Springs. Mr. McGowan contin-
uved to operate the resort until
his death in June, 1913, after
which his widow, Alice Mec-
Gowan, managed the Springs un-
til the property was purchased
by Mr. and Mrs. Neuman in
1915, They kept it for two years
and sold to Brandt Brothers and
Frank Daniels who managed the
Springs until it was purchased

by the firm of Rlley and Enquist
in January of 1920. They owned

and managed Paralso untjl 1024
when it was purchased by the
Petersen family. Then the fire
of Julv 21, 1928 occurred and de-
stroyed much of the property. In
November of last year the Peter-
sens sold out to the Barreits of
Salinas who are busy renovating
the buildings, building swim-
ming pools and improving the
entire property,

Peninsula Diary, 1951. Photocopy courtesy Monterey City Public Library, California
History Room.
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Alemany ond Thaddeus Amal
Rampan Cathalic Bishop of Mon-
lerey, deeded the same proper-
Ly o Pedro Zabala, one of Mon-
terey County’s most estecemed
residents of the day. This was
recopdod on Jan. 1, 1867, Next
{ransfer .was some six or scven
yars Jater. Zabala deeded the
land to O H. Reeve, M. F.
Reeve, and J.eyard (Sigard)
‘Fine. Subsequently O. A. Neeve
maxde gift deed presentations (o
Mrs. Charlotle Recve and Mrs.
H. F. Bryant 1@ years after his
acquisition. The following vear
e doeded certain porttions fo B.
Bryvan aid H. F. Bruant.

-~ Next record on {ile showing
Iand transfers was May 19, 1886,
when a five yvar leasc of Va-

Salinas Californian, Saturday, November 21, 1970 (continud)

cteditors of the grantors” re-
corded Sept. 4. 1548,

Another quitelaim dced, with
the 0. Al Reeve and
H. A. Reeve names affixed. put
tt in the hands of the Bank of
Gilroy as recorded Apch 3, 1539
That same dale & dded made
L. A. Whitchurst aud George E.
Hersey assignees of the two
men's estate, in order to cuirect
a former conveyance. In tum
the Bank of Gilroy deeded the
property to (harles Ford that
same date, within a few.days
conveying a portion of the town-
ship section to Ford from O. A.
Reeve, Whitchurst and Hersey.

Complicated as this  may
sound, nevertheless ! is im-
portant {o the background of the
Jand on which Parajsn Sy
is ~itnaled Tuceanpassed as i
1 a Hiee sides by lowering
mountaln peaks. Salinas Valley
winds seem to pass it by. Tern-
peratures are high, ad are those
in  the sulpher  springs,
where one can bathe in waters
up lo 114 degrees.

Much of the terrain s as it
was when the padres first plant-
ed their 5,000 grope vineyargs.
Here the Indlan  necophyles
baked In the sun and drank the
healing waters. Once duning a
preat epidemic in 1800, Ure neo-
rhyles nursed their members
hack to. health, the population
increasing in the néxt five years
despite the sct-back. . ‘

indian labor was used exclu-
sively to build the njlles :ot
squate wooded reduood plpe
with which to provide an ample
supply of waler. Tracings of
those casings and pipes lurn up
occasiopally, During the heavy
storms  In 1968 the original
springs used by padres and neo-

(Contimped ont Page 1)
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HISTORY
AND
HERITAGH

by
orothy . Vern

Jrimetn e theugh e Paraiso
fings area was I early days,
soon as il came inle privale
retship 4t became one of the

hie xpas of lhe wesl

! Spanch fammlics
kavea fur their re-

tied iw with the
n. roflecting con-
s in i's slatps.
. Alvarzdo wrole to
sticrane Seberanes to et the
tians “»hift for themselves.”
year dater both Indizns and
‘estack had vanishedt and (he
nderfut Paraiso Springs vine-
wds 000 vines so pain.
akingly |lanted and lended by
¢ n fathers . . . were
. Daly 2 Lees
2l thal lime in a
fugple fa suvaval,
e years laler, n 1843, Pio
praclanation, ardered
© neaphyivs 1o reoccupy the

< THIS LITTLE COTTAGE. “The Romia,

Lach Little Gottage

is namod lor one

ol Paraiso Spring’s ownem. Il is typicol of those that
dalled the 20 acres. The pholograph was laken in 1923
it slill is e popular guest collage.

e 0 -Fhia U

w
park placo
TOWIVHOASES

Fhone 738.4247

= e Al
varado adabe, which he Luilt in
ihe  Alisal  district  near  the
warm and beautiful Gavttans.
I'cdro Zabita, ooe-tme Salinas
disuict atlorney and descendant
of the Jormer owner of Varaiso
Springs, laler brought the orig-
inal mission liles from the Al
varado advbe lo Salinas, there
W decorale  his  garden  on
Uie oM stough propertics.
Fullowing the American occu-
pation of Cabfernia, the United
Stales Land Commission . .
on Dec. 15, 1555, dectared Gov

T,

e

llad Tts Own Name

HERE WAS the road into Paraiso Springs in 1950. agbove the present sile of
the lickel booth. The orchard was 1amoved alter the annex bumod in the sec-
ond lire. Smokeslacka visible weie for the Littlo Vicloriam fireplaces in each
room. Two colluges acen through the trees were "Wayside” and “"Hermilage,”
ton down by Homie in 1966, All palin troes in the piclure still exist. Only one
was killod by the lico, but tranks are bluckened.

ermod Pico had no
the land  Tour years laler, un-
der James  Buchasan,  15th
pressdent of Lhe United States,
Suledad Missien and 42 acres
were relurned to the Cathelic
Church . . . the mission \o go
inlo 3 stage of decay (or many
decades.

s to sell.

Om Oct. 23, 1877, the Rev. Jtule
Christian delivered the first re-
ligious services (other than
when ownot by Lhe padres), al
Paraise Springs.

The Springs has had a scries
of colorful owners. olber than
those already mentioned.

One L. Fine, whose home you
saw in tast week's piclures, was
one - lhird owner of Paraisv
Springs in  1889. A npative
of Easl Teanessee, where he
was born in 1803, he ullimalely
arrived in the West, afler hay-
ing maraed Martha Cox In 1833,
lle list crossed the Plalus 1n
1847, relurning for his wlfe am)
two of lis five children in 1854
to install them in the beaulifw
Salinas Valley home.
The Foslers
The same Foster bas became
one long assoclated with {be bls-
lory of Paralso Springs. Capt.

J. G. Foster, a enc-time sicamn:
ship maun lov- 35-years, bought
e Mntcrzatlonal diwtel In San
Francisco in J&64, Threc years
laler )t was he who jonoded Lhe
world - Jamons CUIT House. Be-
camse of the stresw of business
and its effect on ly health, Cap-
tala Foster, with My sor, Edwin
J. Fester, purchascd Yaralso
Springs in 1386,

‘There was regained health for
olhers than Caplain Fosler— for
those who look advantage of the
soda, sulpbur and iran springs,
and the popular mud haths.

(Contipucd on Page 5)
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1834 and the Erst bar ol Paraise Springsl All of these fxdures were
used in the bar in the annex when it was moved there in 1950, bui wers
burned in the fire except lor the tables in the Joreground. They sbill are

in the bar loday.

HISTORY

(Conllout i Page §).
Temperatures 1 soine of Lhe
springs are as high as 14 de-
grees. .

Four hundred lo U8 persons
tiocked lo the heakth spa each
suiner, gowding the Yiclorian
vottages and  hotel facititivs,
some bringing wilh them leals
and camping cquipment In the
carly 1580s one Lraveler through
the Salinas Valley wrole he had
met 3 lraln of seven wagons,
loaded down with beds and
enls, winding Lheir way 1o Pa-

“20

was 3  conlinuous . parade
of p= slets sl the summer
spa. Bupress went: iglo (be
mounlainretreal as aften as
necessary, and a lelephone fo
Soledad provided suilable com-
numicalion. These were weallhy
husinessmen and thelr famblles
who fregquenied the resort, men
who must keep In contact with
heir Sak Francisco, San Jose,
or caslern offices. The early
post office, In covslamt service
for wilh the exception of 22
days in 1893, had a scries of
postmasters until 1927, then was
re-eslablished on Jan. 14, 1939,
Firs) postfr was Oscar A.

raiso Springs. He d
1o 30 persons, all from Sad Jose,
and probably two thinds of them
women. They were fashionably
dressed, sume riding horses."”

Those whe did nel panake of
the baths (and most did) found
centertainment in the long and
beauliful walks proviced around
the Springs, One, Lover’s Walk,
was’ a3 special lavorile, There
was an abundance of quall, rab-
bits asnd deer far lhe bunicrs,
sireams were well stocked for
anglers, an the Salinas Nver
salmon and steelicad offered a
greal  challenge  to  fisher-
wien who had not far to Iravel
from the Springs 1o return with
great calches,

From July, 3$. 1577, un, there

Reeve,o; Hp-was . succeeded by
Charles Ford in 1360, (lhen
Charles T. Romle, that same
year: Julian T. Perrault, 1593:

" Saturday, November 28, 1970

SALINAS CALIFORNIAN-_5A

purchased ths Springs.

Tamic again in 190);
/. Schroeder, 1904;
E. Nomle, 1%5; Nenry H.

*- Gowan, 1907; Hatry W. McGow-
an, B Mary C. Neumann,
1915: Johp Tondord, 1917: Rich-
ard Lebeau, 1922, John Tendor!
again in 1923, and Thonas N.
Petersen, 1947, -

{Morg Next Week!

Salinas Californian, Saturday, November 28, 1970. (continued)

THERE'S SNOW OUT THERE. This photo, fakea in 1950, was 1akon dur.
ing the only snowslorm in history ot Paralse Springs, This is the lobby
in the unnex us it looked when Mr. and Mrs. Olio Barrell, currer:t owners,
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School Days at Dear Old Paraiso Springds

History and Heritage

By Dorothy I5. Vera

There've beer schools at Pa-

- succreding one until the dis.
biet was unificd in 1929,
des were first Uiroupth the
A smalt roem Io the Jeft

of 1he enirance scrved as a Ji-
Wrary. As for waler, abound as
it did i the springs nearhy, u
neveriheless was neo
briny drinking water to puplls
and leacher. A baveel si
right of the huilding, mounted
on runners and was pulled from
the Oisen Ranch by h :

Lloyd Olson, a va
er, was paid, as a
3 cenls per varrel
chure.

traners have come and _gone,
hut the property perhaps he-
fungtedd longest to the I'ctersons
and the Barrelts, current own-
ers, )

Deeded by the Uni

er,
for ahe

4 Stales

USED COLOR 14)

And lu'. .ul-dlnn of Blacy
C' 322.50, N
service all maka.

Sonta Lucin TV
W3 LIS W, Merket

22331

man Cathalic Bishop of tlic Div-
cese of Monterey, the fiest pal-
ent

Then

Sehrovder 1o run il

The Latler was well known in
$alinas,  lob, having  been
manager of the Jotel Jeflery,
At the lime Schrocder was
rato Springs proprieter . . .
about 1701 . a smail biack-
bound  burklet was publixhed
with an actnal photograph on
the cover. 1t listed many “plus-
ses™ enjoyed by guests ...
aranges on lhe trees, ripe
10 out of 12 months of the year;
tmUer, honey and eggs direct
from the ranch. Fresh ripe besr-
rics, [ruit and apples were
pleked Irom the orchard and
served at dining lables, wherp
they were covered wilh thick
cream from the dairy.

Single rooms were $10.50 10
$12.50 a week, with all clse
free. including the iherapeutic
vaths in the springs, Even the

Your Expensive
Dress Shoes
repaired with

MEN!

THE RANCH. the While House. and La Chapelle are shown in that order, from lell. The
firsl, the oldest building, wos deslroyed in the initial fire, The White House, consid-

ered the "bes!” collage al Paraiso Springs al the time

the piclure was taken, also

bumed. La Chupol]u. or Brighiside Couagc. tocks Iudny much as il did then,

THIS WAS PARAISO SPRINGS’ second schooll tw

near Clark Road, al a spol where the waler rough later was built. The 1eacher’s desk
and bell were lakon 1o Soledad when the school was moved to the Olson property. This
pholegraph was taken in May, 1912. Only one youngster is unidentilied, the boy on the
leR. Others are. from lelt. Waller McGowan. Lloyd Olson. Dick Cross. Harry Kubik (in
kront), William Kubik. and the loacher Miss Filzgerald, who later moved to Gilroy.

advive of a physician was a1
no cost 10 vacationers, Prices
per omonth were in the 350
range: ourses  and  chiltlren
were aceammodided at reduced
rales.

A round trip ou the train from
San Francisce cost $8. Guesls
armived at the station in Sole-
dad \shcrc they \\crc met by

was siluated on Paraiso Read

the Springs™ taliyho and herses
and taken for the onc hour (six
miles) ride intn the beautiful
feothills.

Youngsters were grecled with
all kinds of rutertainmcnt, in-
cuding Jonkey rides.

The Romies and MctGowans
owned the properly until about
1917, \\h[ll it was sold to N, E.

Newman and M. C. Newman,
There were 18 cabins that year,
accommedaling onc 1o SN peo-
ple in vach: a 17-roomr hotel,
a dining room suitable for scat-
ing 100 guests, and a kitchen
with all conventences including
an fee house. A bar, a small
dance hall and a swinuning pool
(Continued on Page 5)

B EARING SPECIALTY COMPANY-

Serving California

Loving Care -

We have the equipment, experi-
ence, and matorial lo expertly
repair your shoes and gat them
back to you fast.

John's
Red Wings

SHERWOOD GARDENS

John Aceves Sr. — John Aceves. Jr.

Melody Shoe Shop

10 WEST ALISAL

Service While You Wail, 20 Yrary Experlence

537 BRUNKEN AVE,

SALINAS, CA. 93901
DISTRIBUTORS FOR: !

® POWER TRANSMISSION EQUIPMENT"

Phone [408) 758-3345;

¢ MECHANICAL
¢ HYDRAULIC

Timhen

® ELECTRICAL
* PNEUMATIC

Qrad Rings
Rotory Seals
Diomond Chols & Gears

Hoston -
*
.
Eaton Yole B Towne hd
-
.
»
[

Fofalr

Hyely >
Link Exlr

New Departure
Hike

SXF

MeGill

Generol Electilc
Clippar Lecing
Spirol Pims
Chehiea

Spicer

Borg Woraer
Hew Protass
Bleod Brothers

Terringtoa

Argule {Wood)

Bunving

Thomion

Chesterton (Pockisg) Seols
Chicago Rowhlde

“0" Rings

Dyno Torg

Locthe Producrs
Acroquip

Roston Woves Hote

se0 828 s
dee s 000
see et s v

Bl Latocies, Mgr.,

Salinas Californian, Saturday, December 5, 1970. Photocopy courtesy of Monterey
County Historical Society.




REMINISCENT ol o Romcm pool, this was phnlogmplmd al Paraiso Springs prio: 1o

1950, dressing rooms and all

F
rounded by the Sierra do Salinas. Pulm kees and other
warm days mast of tho year.

HISTORY

{Continued Frem Page 1)

adddedd to the pleasures of guests,

From e Newmans the
property went o the Brands,
the Rileys, the Enguists and
then to Lhe Pelersons.

Ol B, and Annma G. Peter-
son were the first in this clan
lo take over, on March 6, 1924,
Then to the son and his wile,
r. and Mrs. Thomas Pelerson,
who are yemembered by thous-
ands in the valley, Retiring in
1950, they sold the property to
0. T. and Joicy Barrell, who in
turn sold it 1o Roy and Jacque.
fine Ramey.

Now, again, the Barretls have
taken over, and are resloring
as nuch of the ol Paraiso
Springs as possible. ‘['wo fires,

stroyed some of its eviginal
charm, et nothing  can
take away  the  grandeur
of Sulinas Valley scenery, pe-
culiar only \a Pal 8

¢ farmer bas more
machine  horsepower  working
for him than the average face
1ory worker.

YERSATIS,

Soy flour, a meal made from
soybeans, is just as versatile
as soy oil. R can be mixed
with wheat flour to make a me-
trilious bread and it also has a
high protein mmtnl

The three top crops in the
United Slates by volume in l'JB?
were corn wheat and soyt

Sheer Sixzling
LIPS ond NAILS!

MERLE NORMAN
COSMETIC STUDIO

1024C S, Moin 422-7104

o ercady nvul to Swars)

Hamilton’s

NUT SHOPPE

2 Mile North of Marina Village Shopping Center on H;;vy. 1
Open Every Day Noon ‘til 8 P.M. Until Christmas!

French Fried Almond

GIFT SUGGEST 1ONIE:

mslacioy 3906, 4
with deliciou cheve 112,90

NEXY MAILING
DEADLINES:

1970 Crop
Popping Gaod

7o dreach trrt mic 81207 o1 Cambicd put me 333 11 Keng
i

FREE CHRISTMAS

“aturday, Dece

westiern
Santa.

GIVE YOUR
COWHAND A
CHRISTMAS

GIFT

From
The Salinas
Western Store

A full crowa that accents tho corsently
opular look in western hats. Threa and 2
Earf

or four-inch brim. 2500

Silver Belly or Black

Famous
Tony Lama
Handcrafted

BOOTS

For Men & Women
‘rom

Ask About Our Layaway Plan
Or Easy Financing Available

East Coost Porcel Pon DEV

December 12 VERY
. an purchases or 315.00 or more!

Oversens Alr Mail Limited 1o Morino and 15 mile rodivs.

December 12

Vievlern - Enxiish  and
ftanch  Saddlery
spparel.

Salinas Californian, Saturday, December 5, 1970. (continued)
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Page 6

By JANE BIRD

. In a snug litlle spot
‘sheliered from the changable
clements of the Salinas Valley
lies Eternidad Paraiso Hot
Springs, where (or many
hundreds of years the halt and
the ailing have cased their
afflictions in lhe healing
walers of the spa.

Although the orlgin of the
springs is burled in the dim
recesses of the past )
remalns much as il was
when the genlle gray friars

of the La Nuesira Senora de
Ia Soledad Misslon planted
the first vineyard In Ceniral
Callfornia and nuriusred It
whh 2 vast lbrrigation
system which slso supplied
water Jor the hundreds of
ocres under culiivation In
the velley below.

¥ Legend says that il was a
galhering place for the Creek
Indian (ribes who traveled
across  counlry. {rom their
home (now Missouri) to the

Paraiso Hot Springs
Dates Back To Mission, Indians

healing springs “ncar the
Great Waler.”

During lhe hey day of the
Mission rule, records reveal
that the therapeutic value of
the springs was discovered
when the Indian neophyles in
the charge of the padres told
of the hot hesling waters of the
springs which had been used
by their anceslors for many
generations.

THE FRANCISCANS
discovered that certain of the
walers when drunk and

PARAISO SPRINGS Is helieved to have been one of the smalles? land pranis ever given
comprising only 20 acres. Lying In 3 snug IRlie nitche flanked on three sides by 1he-loNy
beginnings of the Santa Lucia mountaln range, the spa boasts the sight of the first
vineyard in lhe Salinos Valley. The Franciscans and neophyle Indians brought redwood
from the Santy Crur area for lhe consirucilon of the llirst Srrigalion system used In
Ceniral Calilornia.

CONTINUING RESTORATION of the historic tandmark

s due In 2 large part 1o Ole Hellekson who lor several
years has worked side by side wilh the resert owners In
reconsiructing Jhe Victorian buildings and many ot the
original antlques of the “hey day’” ol the hol springs

resor).

VICTORIAN COTTAGES are In the

HiSi’ory

bathed in nlloyed many of the
olflictions suffered by them
due lo their confinement in the
damp adobe buildings of the
Missfons. Paln was relieved,
fevers reduced, inlections
cured, cczemn healed, and
disorders of the liver, kidneys
and slomach disappeared.
Mission records also speak in
glowing terms of the in.
vigorating qualities of the spa.

it was at this site thal the
gentle Iathers planted 5,000
grape vines which evenlually
furnished the sacramental
wines used in the Masses
celebraled al the nearby
Soledad Mission.

Miles of redwooed plpes
and casings were bullt by
the Misslon Indlans from
redwood brought from the
Sante Crut srea for lhe
purpese. This gigantic task
when completed furnished
the water necessary lo
irrigale not only thelr vast
vineyard but the crops
raised on the valley floor.
Traces of this primalive

irrigation system are still
occasionally found and are
believed lo have channeled the
walers {rom numerous
springs inlo one large flume
which carried il to the valley
betow, B -

The  combination  of
minerals used in the irrigation
apparenlly had a starlling
elfect on the planls thal il
walered. The Franciscans
discovered that their crops
Nourished, grew al an
amazing rale of speed and
bore crops of the highest
qualily and in greal abun-
dance. This they attribuled o
the mineral bearing waters.

EVEN TO TS day, a \rip

1o Paraiso Hol Springs, is
much like arriving at a deserl

springs

» Mrs,

Revls.

oasis. Gigantic Royal palms
planted by the padres to form
a cross across the property
have reached a height of
nearly 100 feel. Dale palms
stand side by side with the
Royals and are nearly as tall
os their neighbors.

Paraiso Is believed to have
been one of the smallest Jand
granis ever swarded, If not
the smaljesi comprising 20.32
acres. The Jand was granted
by King Carlos of Spain lo the
Monterey Diocese.

Through the years a
number of dlsinterested
owners have permitied the
hstorle slle Lo deteriorale
into a snd stale of disrepalr.
I has only becn In recent
yeary with the ownershlp of
Mr. and Mrs, Otto Barrett
that the dellghtiul spot s
taking on » semblence of
what It was durlng Rs peak
asa resort al lhe turn of the
century.

In the 1800°s an epidemic of
great proportions hit the area.
Although there was some
doubl as te its origin it was
referred lo in Mission annais
as the plague, It was lo this hot
springs that the Indian
population brougbt their ailing
brothers lo the curative.hot
springs and nursed them back
to heaith,

Following the secularization
of {he Mission chain, the
Misslen land, which inciuded
the Paraiso Hot Springs began
its deterioration.

BY 1841 all of tie neophyles
had left and the thousands of
cattle, mules, horses and
sheep had el but disappeared.
‘The 2032 acre vineyard was
abandoned and the Mission
eslate begen to crumble,

In 1845, Governor Pio Pico

{Continued on Page 9}

process of resforatlen which Is supsrvised by the
g the actual reconstruction Is Ols

Hellekson who :‘lnd; much of his Ilme at the resert furning back the clock with his

resloratlon worl

Many ol lhese collages are now as They wore af the turn of the century
betore hwo destruciive fires rared the property in 1928 and agalnin 1934 ,




DELIGHTFULLY SECLUDED picnic area is locafed
below the main bulldings and is In all probabliily where
the genlle padres and Jheir Indian charges of the La
Nuestia Senora de 1a Soledad Mission tended their flocks
of Jacobs Sheep. Approximaiely 3¢ percent of The sheep's
diel consists of leaves Irom The oak trees that abound at
The sile. Springs manager Mrs. Jacqueline Revis enjoys
the¢ serenity of the oll season in the shaded picnic area.

More . ;.

Paraiso Hot Springs History

(Contiaved from FPage §)
sold. the Mission and its
holdings to Feliciano Sobranes
for the sum of $800. What little
livestock was lell was seited
and the spoilalion was un-
derway.

Iron and tle were
stripped [rom the wdobe
buildings of the Mission
proper and were \ran-
sporied lo Lhe Alvarade
adobe in the Alisal Distrietl
near the Gabilans., Later,
Pedro Zsbala, a descendanl
of one ol the original
owners of thc springs.
removed the tiles from the
Alvarado adobe and moved
them to Salinas where lhey
were wsed to decorate the
garden wall of his home.
1t wasa't until Dee. 18, 1855,

The Land, December, 1971 (contined)

Victorian charm of the lurn
of the century is making its
appearsnce once agaln
under the able hand of Die
Hellekson, who {19
responsible for much of the
resioration.

Over the vears many Lhings
have been known to effect the
hot springs which lies jusl a
few miles [rom Highway 10t
south and west of Soledad.
Torrential rains in 1968
reactivated the original
springs used by the Fran-
ciscan fathers which is now in
3 complele resloralion
process.

Major earthquakes in
various parts of the sworld
have also been known lo effect
the walers of the springs by
increasing their flow and
raising the tentperature of the
spa.

THE GOSSIP oak is gone
where bustled ladies and
bewhiskered gentlemen
gathered 1o exchange news of
the day but as a point of in-
terest many are now lurning
to the “talking tree'' which is
located at the original springs
site.

Affectionally known as
“Vasgquez™ the iree does nol
really converse wilth those
who seek the shelter of ils
branches but seems tc dv 2aby
means of rubbing i\s branches
together to produce @ soll
whispering.,

Where once proud ladies
in Jengthy bathing dresses.
their legs and ankles hidden
Isom view by heavy
stockings and their Jleel
encased in bathing shoes,
premenaded sbout the
springs, now lovely, llthe
tanned women In bright
bikinls decorate the jand-
scape.

Although Paraiso Springs
has changed over the years an
aura of the past still seems to
inate a{ the site.

ing the oc i of
Alta California by the
Americans that lhe United
States Land Olfice declared
that Gevernor Pio Pico had no
right to sell the church
property. In 1859, during the
lerm of President Buchanan,
15th President of the Uniled
Slates, thal (he Mission
buildings including 42 acres of
land was returned to the
church.

This* apparently did nol
include Paraise Hot Springs
which seems lg have slarted to
come Inlo its gwn about this
period of history.

DY 1980 Paraiso Hot Spriigs
resorl had become one of the
most famous of its kind in the
Western Uniled States. One of
the cotlages still In cxistance
al the spa is referred 1o as the
Governor's mansion dus to the
number of dignitaries who
stayed there over the years.

The springs was rzzed by
fire July 21, 1928 when ap
overheated cooking stove in
the ki{chen of the holel ignited
and dJestroyed many of the
original buildings. At this lime
the springs was owned by 0.8,
Peterson. In 1950 the property
was purchased by Mr. and
Mrs. Otlo Barrelt and was
once again burped in 1954
when a number of the few
remaining original buildings
were laid wasle,

Alrs. Jacquellue Revis,
daughter of Mr. and Alrs.
Barrett, is the manager of
\he springs and by workiog
1o restore much of the site
10 its eriginal state. The

pr
Modern facilitles * have
replaced outmoded unils and
electric lights have laken the
place of candle and fantern.

Facililies oflered to the
public include distinctive
restored cottages, hot mineral
bathes, trailer and camp sites,
and Olympic size swimming
pool, a small Indoor pool,
hiking troils, slocked fish

G-10

pends for lhe children,
playggound equipment,
healed recrealion room,
dance pavillion and cocklail
lounge as well as a large
dining room. *

NO LONGER DDES the
Paraiso Springs tallyho arrive
in Soledad te meet resort

guesls al the train depol and
transport them over a dusty
road to the hot springs. Gone
are the quiet {riars and their
Indian charges Lul slill that
{eeling of the past prevails
where once they walked arid
tended their grapes wilh
foving patienl care.




By
Betly Lewis

A

amous
attraction

efore
the turn

0[ tlze

centur_y. .

Beautitul Paraiso Hot Springs

Cne of Mon

y G carliest
SUTMer Iesoris was so Hot
Springs nestied un the eastarn slope
of the Santa Lucia magnains, Originale
fy 2 pottion of 1 Spanish land grant
given 1o the  Fram Fathers of
Suledad Mission, these health giving
springs wete 1o be favorite with
visitors who came frem many miles
away o enjuy  the uty and the
health restoring clfects of the springs.
Most would come by train 1o the
Solvdad  station  where they  would
then transler to 2
fizish their jouries o
seven mides it ll e
Raided as the
Lomparing it s
Germany,

ted o e
thing - theumativm,
tronbles, disvtders
‘».Ellnx"« 1 e

unid wihide
hiy ulv.“

of cight tine, large sized oranzes, from
o tree growing in the grounds at the
Springs. They were seedlings of cxcel-
fent shope and color, free from b
or the remotest s._qn of the ¢
any insect pest.” --Sulinus fOURN ,li,,
Jonuary 1893

Paraiso was 10 go through asueces-
sion of owners amd managees such as
Vanderburst, Sanborny & Company of
Salinas who purchased the Spiings
1889 and retained Captain . C foslcr
as the manager. Many improy
were made including
cottage, one story, with
rooms and a wide piagzza o
outside. The exist wn
the grounds were gemrodeled +
direction ot
Ford, of Watsun
owner gt this time, iny
his friends and business as
Paraiso where they enjoves
of the sprines Jong watl
fishing. gala pariies anid ded
“Parviso Spiimgs The Caris?
Americad - The oy o
and scenery of
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with the use of the hor sode snd sul-
phur springs for g {onic, make it tie
most siaitary and Tuxuarious heolth
resurt in the world. Among the diseu-
ses which yield to these waters gre. ..
female irregularities, sick headache,
dyspepsia, oeurdl cazema, poisen
ouk and ofl skin discases. New cottsges

und superior gecomodations sut
and winter.* f.G. Proprictor.” - The

PALARONIAN, September 5, 1889
Some of the other proprictors over
the vears were: Reeve & Finep WW.
Ford and Mary A, Furd;H.C. Shannon;
Heney McGowan: HE. Newman; Oia f

s D Thes,
it and Ray Ra
Lowis Exposition in 1904 the Pazziso
Sl Waters were  awarded

prive, When Heary MiGowan becarse
the gwner in 1907 he bad wolored
de printed srowing the resort
Bitars were aguick to bay
i frends or

Fie swept througn
1927 wnd nuny o) U
wete destrayed. Thes

e grounds
| .

Monterey ounty Herald, n.d. Photocopy courtesy Monterey County Parks.
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Five
Hot Sp
{renm
mes
Because yetn Parce s
pan ol the pleasiie, chonse s ome when
vou don’t have 1o ks paci a plenic
unciv and head vour car following 1
map on the nabl
li vou wish o get these 1
¢ outh Sl
T and tare o conn
Gonzales or S i
if you dery’
the wav hhom
Monterey-Sa
as Reane G 1T
This Rver Road wes a former stage
coach route, and winds along the foot of
the Santa Lucia Mountains. Ar one time
it was the onlv connecting link with iso-
lated farms and ranches on the south
side of the Salinas River: glimpsed now | and quiet haven
and then 1o the lelt. The next thing i
Fallow this infrequentle iravaied road right G
and vou'lHind voursell beginning o sow | Seco Road
down. vour car specd as well as vourself. | for znother sign Pa
The hills 10 the right se. upinto !
a purpiv haze and the vy whic

IR R EEN

UEVEIRIATY
+ Higtaway Compl

house is all that teaaums ol hoavi | cat

Hhae ~omny
o the ald River Road alt
its heaning on the
15 Flighwan, now igeown

peaceiut thar e
A automiat 1

As the fivids oi v -0 e
either side of the rome v,
vinevards, watch for Mission S
andturnin for a shor siop
simple building and qu
rounded bulovely pl

follonw thee

PARAISO
POOLS ARE
NOW OPEN

ALL YEAR

—

View from plateau at Paralso Hot Springs looking down from TIOD ool elevation 1o
Salinas Vallev

Undated brochure written by Frieda Liese for Paraiso Springs, circa 1980s. Photocopy

courtesy Monterey County Parks.
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vout G Gt ontend ook down

i Salnes Vallee from e plateasu
on s OO feet
viing Roval palms which
wrea, vour view is suporb!

Paraiso Hot Springs seems o be held
yently cupped benween hills Protecte
from cold winds. warmed by the sun_ it
a place of greal serenity. tranquil and
lovely in its almost untouched natural-
ness.

An Olvmpic-sized swimming pool and
smatller mineral pool are for vour enjoy-
ment. Hot mineral baths which have
'JNL.‘“ the pa s f“_“f’ rcpmanm']'_ are Swimmer enfering hot minerat pool. Temperatore ol water is approximately 92 de-
available at an additional fee. These arecs.
theraputic walers, at a lemperaluse of
116 degrees, are said to be highly cura:
five and their effects lasting.

After a swim or hike — there are invit-
ing wails in and around the area — st
outyour picnic lunch on one of the tables
scatiered beneath huge eucalypius trees
and consider the history of this unusual
spol. And it is unusual.

Originally a Spanish land grant of the
1790’s. it is thought 1o be the smallest
one ever given a patent — only 20.32
acres. The Franciscan padres establishod
La Nuestra de La Soledad. the adjacen:
mission. and used the hot springs for
healing the sick or afflicted. Because of
the waler's curative powers and the
tranquil beauty of the setting. they called
the place “Eternidad Paraiso.” Erernai
Paradise.

Following the secularizatian of
missions by Mexico in 1833, the small
narcel of land passed through succvssive
ownership und! at the arn of the < v
it became a famous resort. Trams from SOLEDAD
San Francisco and Los Angeles depo Hwy. 101 . To LA,
sited passengers at the 1own of Soledid 7y
and slaqe coaches brought them 7 mitos
1o the hot springs,

Some wvears later the hotel buikli
were all destroved by a devastating fire Sainas River
-~ chaned places are visible on the
ninks of the palms — and the ’
hev-day was over. Bt was built again in a
more simple swle. only 1o be razed b
another fire in 1954,

Today the springs is owned and opes-

ated by @ syndicate and is being slowly .
testored Itis to be hoped that this takes
place soon, ior Paraiso Hot Springs de-

Olvmpic-sized swimming pool.

River Road Arrovo Seco

serves the appreciation and attention = o
his received for so many vears hegin

Maonters
Mg gk 3 CUNRIIOS Age

PARAISO HOT SPRINGS

Page 2 of brochure by Frieda Liese.
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nd Luldour pools at Paralso Hot Springs

Towerlng palms dominale the sky over sun deck a

-_.BY MARY RODRIGUEZ

‘he chaatle cosmos we live in is cver-changing,

so ftis nice 10 know -that some places rematn

constanl, Though bikini-clad bathers have re-

-placed jhe long-skitied, pantalooned Gibson.

-gir) bathers. ‘of yesterycar, litle else has

changed at Paroiso Hot Springs Resont since it was
founded in the line 1800s.

Located 53 miles sonthenst of Monlesey, Paraiso
Hol Springs: ‘originnlly was heralded as  “(he
Corlsbad of Americo,” since the minerals in its
springs were chemically analyzed as the same min-
crals fuund in the walers of the famons German
watering place. They are hot soda, potassivm, ar-
senic, inagneslum and sulphur,

Now, insiead of tnllyhos and olber horse-dipwn
conveyances, molor cars and recreationnl vehicles
nscend the winding, live-mile Arioyo Sceo road 10
the springs’ clevalion of 1.400-fcet in the Santa

] Alls Visin Magezine, Sunday, October 14, 1890

Alta Vista Magazine, Sunday,

Lucin mountains, 12 miles southwest of Soledad,

A genial conple, Marge and Waren Pertine,
Kmrhascd the resort in 1971, They ¢ame to the

lonierey Peninsula from Southern California and
scitled first in I'cbble Beach.

"Yhen we visited Paroiso 1ot Springs Resort we
felt in love with the natural beauty of the place and
vpon learning it was up fur sate, we bonght il,” said

. Waren,

“We hod arrived on the scene just before it was
1o be sold v o developer. We leorned he hail plans
1o modernize the spa and cui down » wooded arca
‘1o pul in o goll cowse.”

“Our molto upon purchosing Paralso wns “io
teend gemly’ on this beautiful Jand,

““The changes we have made over neorly 1wo dlec-
odes have been only o improve the property and
refurbish the cabins, lodge, and the tuahs and
povls, and add 1o the gardens, keeping the place in
ils gorgeous nutural stale.”

The cabins are of differem designs and scveral
ore the original ancs — summer humes buill in the

]
ki

Public Library, California History Room.
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1800s and enrly 19005 by celcbrities including Claus
Spreckels, the sugor king.

Al that time, Paraiso Hat Springs was one of the
most {omous resorls of Its kind in Wesfern Uniled
Stntes, especially after Paraiso soda water won first
prize over compelitors ot the St. Lovis Fair in 1904,

Mnige I!':uolnlcd oul _onc old-loshloned cottoge
named “the Governor's Mansion” becsuse man
lignitari - ling James Buch , 151
president of the United Siates, slayed there,

Around the lodge ore also trofler spaces and
campgrounds, and n picnic arca with tables and
charconl barbeeucs.

Some cabins have 8 relrigerator and a hot ploie;
seven have full kitchen facililics,

Recenlly the Perrines added e picluresque Yun
cmnpuuud‘.(a yon is a domed ciecular tcnt of canvas
strciched over a wooden lattice,} wilth slecping
quaiters, hcxagon bathwovm, kitchen snd confer-
cnce center and picnic area. "

1 is avaitabilc 1o all visilors but mainly used as
mecling place for followers of Sufism, s Mostem

{Continued on page 8)

October 14, 1990. Photocopy courtesy Monterey City




Cablns ore
of differen) designs
and several are lhe

otlginal anes —
summet homes
bulf In the 1800s
ond eatly 19005

A window of so-called
'Goveror's Manslon’:

Maony dignllaties — Including
President James h

stayed lhere

v .Wﬂ" A

The Indoar mineral bath:
Woter femperalure Is
around 108 degrees

Alta Vista Magazine, Sunday, Oclober 14, 1990

Alta Vista Magazine, Sunday, October 14, 1990. (continued)
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Fees and directions

araiso  Springs  chatges a

daily §$t4 cnlrance fec for

cach pcrson, regatdless of

age. ‘The day use fec in-

clides wse of the 1wo out-
sl pools, a picnic aica, ck
bar and beverage bar, (el 0
1onny and game loom,

An additional §5 per person (ec
is charped for nse af the encloscid
hol minctal bath. Adulis only (18
ar over) aie sllowed in the ho
poal.

All thice ponls miay be used al

no exta charge by caltage Jent-
cts. Campers and mobile home
guesis must pay $5 per day (o use
the enctoscd hot bath,

‘Ihere is also n $2 charge pot
day per dog. Weekly and morthly
ates arc a le.

Two arcas are av
1ecicatinnal vehicles and

araiso prounds and pools will
be clusert Nov, 20, 21 amt 22 ami
Dec. 24, 25 and 26.
For farihes information, phone
AUR/6TY-2RR2. =

To

—

SOLEDAD
®

Salmas River

Arroyo Seco

River Road Road

lo

Monlerey PARAISO HOT SPRINGS

{Continucd {rom page 6)

; X S
A shady deck oulside he ‘Governor’s Manslon’ ot Paralso Hol Spilngs

8

Alla Vista Magezine, Sunday, Oclober 14, 1990

mystical religion which has devcloped literature of
symbelic poelry.

The lodge at the resnrt offers a deck with 1ables,
chair nnd nmbrellas with a stunning view looking
over the Salinas Valley ncross 1o the Pinnacles. In-
sitle is a long full bar, which is also a snack bar
open from 8 am. 10 6 pun. daily except on Sal-
undays when il closes at 9 p.m.

The bar is overscen by Bertha Gracely, who
makes the {resh salads. Samdwiches, soups, hot
dogs, tamales and the like also are served. There is
a game room with ncwspagers, magazines, and
books and gnmes. A secrealion room has a Ping
Pong 1able ond a poal table. On Saturdays a movie
is shiown in two locations in the lodge at 7 p.m.

(licsiha is one of the many tong-term tenanis liv-
ing at the resort, mostly professional people from
nearby 1owns.)

The Perrines, in keeping with their low-key op-
crating policy, tecided not to have o restausant, *“It
woukl have had 10 be fisst closs and might have
heecame one of the “in™ places to dine, which could
be disturhing 1o oveinight guests and ihe peace and
quict signature of the resorl,

“We never advenlise anid do ot even have road
signs leading here. Rservations should be made in
atlvance. We have never had nny desire 1o exploi
th -

The palm tops arc the first sign of the approach
to Parasiso, The tall lrees were planted by the
Franciscan fathers in the 17905 in the shape of a
cross originatly, Marge said,

‘The pndres henrd of the springs’ curative powers
from the Chumash Indians, she added.

“They thought the ares 10 he a ‘spirit-land’ and
camped a short dislance away in a litile valley to
the right. We hought 1his valley, 1oo, and have left
it with its grinding siones undisiusbed. We do leel
the presence of the Indians' spirits and sense lhc‘y
have saved us from disasier on several occasions,”
she said. .

*Just recently, walking st closing time from the
lodge kitchen to the traiter in which we live, | heard
8 whisper 'Go bnck.’ 1 did and smelled smoke. 1t
was coming from a porch light fixiure over which a
swallow had buill a nest, which we did no1 disturb. -
The bird had somcheow shosted the electric wire,
cansing the beginning of a fire, which we were able
to extinguish in {ime.

“On such oceasions, 1 rememher the words of
Mis. Barrett from whom, with hier husband, Ono,
we hought the property.

"She hnd been very business-like all during the
\ronsaction.  HMowever, when we shook Iands in
parting, she said soltly, "Il the spirits like you, you
will succeed here, if they don'l, you wilt fail.” ™

According to the area’s early history, after the
Indians 1obd 1he VFranciscans of the springs, the pa-
dies arranged for the iransfer of the Jand as a

_Alta Vista Magazine, Sunday, October 14, 1990. (continued)




which ‘included the site of

n Soledad. The padres used the nfin-

‘hepl the afflicted, and beeanse: of

d beautilul selting, hey calied. the
i ~ clernol paradise. .

Foliowing the scc jon of the

o by
Mexico in. 1833, the small parcel of land passed

Ihrough 1successive_ownership untit at’ the turn of
the century it begame a fanous reson. Trains from
Saw'Franciseo and Los Angeles deposited passen-
goss at-the lown of Suledad and stage conches
browght them seven mites 1o the hnt springs.

ts Jnler the holel buildings were all de-

‘toyediby o dévastaling’ fire: — cherred places.nré

~visible on the tninks of the patms-— snd the spa’s
heyday was over. It was buill again In a mote sim-
ple styte, only 10 be razed by pnother fire in 1954,
The Perrines both gradumied wilth engineering
degrees fiom R { Polytechnic i in

Troy, N.Y. — he shend of her. They did not Enow

each other there, but mct at & iennis mateh in
Newporl Beach. Be is a quict-manncred inventor.

There are thiee mineral pools nad Wasren ex.
plainei: “The hot minceal water fecding them is
forced np through faults fiom sublerranean Jevels,
“The waier tiscs 10 the ground surface a1 abouwt 117
degrees and flows downbilt to the fiuce pools.

" The smazing Now of water is continvous, 24
houts a day — with approximately 30,008 gadlons of
It mineral waler finwing through each poul, each

One of ihe old colloges
for renl al the resort

Pholos by
Steve Gann,
The Herald

A slarier kit for th
1a) patmy at Parals

An ofd
posicard:
Poslage In
those days
was one cont
for domestlc,
fwo cents lor
lorelgn mall

The three poals nclude a hot enclosed mineral
bath with waler {emperature around 108 degrees, a
small outdvor mineral pood with temperature in he
low 1005, and a large nuldoor mincral poot with
temperane most of the year in the Jow 8Us

“Flic water is constantly changing io the Jarpe pool

Alta Vista Magazine, Sunday, October 14, 1990. (continued)
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with the fresh coming in at the pool surface, whil
e old waler is draincd off at the bottom. @

oooo

Mary Rodriguez, & frequent contributor to Ak
Vista Magnzine, is a fice-lance wiiter wha lives
Montetey.

Alta Vista Mogazine, Sunday, Oclober 14, 1830
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Paraiso recovers

from 1995 flood

Hot springs make comeback

BY BETSY LORDAN

cae a0 Lrabl PV ane .
o St e

Destroved twice by hire and e
aged by Bist year’s historie Marih
Moo, Parasn Hot Springs s back

Nestled i the foothills ol the
Santa Lucir Mountmas, the spa
held o speoil celebration sester-
day 1o Jet svenane koo that s
back 1 sction.

“We actually reopesed i Nee
sember,” sandd othice nmuanaer Jose
Lopez. “But we wanted o debay
the ceremony unuib the weather
was perfect aml the water s com
plerely clear.”

Marnjornie Pernine. who
nwned- the spa.wath her bt
Warren sinee 19710 pointed om
that none of the mineral water s
recvcled, Tt éomes from the eround
23 hours a day

Warren Perrine i an mventor
who has used- s skalls to upgrade
the spa, Mirnone Pernine said.
~ “When we bowght the vpa, noth.
ing worked,” she wnd “(Warren)
automated evervihing: ™
are eneontac s
:m’n"r.nl' heot - bathe

hoas

RIS
bepr oar oo

[SUTENIN
he

107 deerces Fahrenheit, and
the snll and large mineral-water
powsis. where the water stays ot 102
deerees st NI degrees respec-
i - -

The o ey ot the end of
Pur. Road., o3t the old stage-
woadh route now knoewn as River
Ronnd
TWhen | by high
school, we ained (0 come up here
and Seledad resilent Drury
Tankershs “There used 10 be
stuvosn h stop nearbyeand there
1 buees that tonk people back
amd barth 7

Lankersha, whe sod he pradu-
ated trons bigh schood i 1939 v
amony dozens ol oeal residents
vl o vesterday’s celebration

Oftice manager [ opez rem
bets dast sear’s Hood as if at by
pencd vesterday  Water gathed
down from the foothills, eventually
appine the topsal off the din
ol aml overllowing into the
baths  Batung areas and  recre-
ation oms blled up. with sand
and dht The tnean saff of Ine

toashh

BT

Wi

RN

Wi )

7 Gien PARAISO PAGE 20

Hot springs rebuilt after flood

PARAISO FHOM PAGE 1C

hatl -t evacuate 1o the Best West
Crn o lown,

The Perrines eventually spent
SHau to dig out the Gty rep-
aned the recreation room, replace
wooden  Hoothoards and - feneey,
and cquip, the pools with new i
berglass, according to FLopez.
©Alhngh the spic v AR AR ™
running, the. Perrines hive no ap-
parentinterest i atracting
crowd. In kupm-- with 1heir pre-
thood pohey, "We heep the prices

we, chinped SI23
the spa Jor o duyand we woukl
somehines
weekend day.”

hiph so we can keep the crowihs
“own,”

Lopez siid,
“When b ostntgd here e 19Ul

peison nouse

pet S on
Loy

Now, patrons”pay

yeople
7 addcded.
S$25 o Jay dor

use of the pools and other facili-

fies, $5 extia tor the bt h.uh\
T RTI T A | T T e oo
the old hath area. which has iwoe
liled tubs buoilt i the INs AL
that prive, the spa sees about 33

prople ona ven buw weekend dav.

Monterey County Herald, March 18, 1996. Photocopy courtesy of Monterey City
Library microfilm files.
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Reverse side of postcard of Paraiso Springs used in 1911.
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PARAISO SHINES;
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Reverse side of 1886 busmess crd shown above )
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Photo of Journal, Ledger, and Cash Book kept by William and Mary Ford from 1892-
1899. Photo taken with permission of owner, Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page 1 in Journal of William and Mary Ford, 1892. Photo taken with permission
of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page 2 in Journal of William and Mary Ford, 1892. Photo taken with
permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Pagein] oumal of Wllham and Mary Ford, 1892, showing purchases for
Paraiso Springs. Photo taken with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page in Journal of William and Mary Ford, 1893, showing purchases of supplies from
Ford & Sanborn and billheads and cards, and salaries paid to employees. Phato taken
with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page from Ledger of William and Mary Ford, showing salary paid to C. T. Romie and
others, 1893. Photo taken with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page in Ledger of William and Mary Ford, showing salaried paid, advertising

expenses, and other general expenses in 1895. Photo taken with permission of Peter
Sonné, 2004.
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aée in Ledger of William and Mary Ford, showing salaries pai
Chinaman” and others in 1896. Photo taken with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page in Cash Book of William and Mary Ford, showing various expenses
and receipts. Photo taken with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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Page in Ledger of William and Mary Ford showing various entries in May 1899.
Photo taken with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.

G-34




Entry in Journal of William and Mary Ford, recording the purchase of the horse and
stage coach from R. Robertson in June 1895. Photo taken with permission of Peter
Sonné, 2004.
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TRIS AGNERMENT, made st Parlasy Spvitgs, konizray Cously,
Colidernia, by and bsivesn Wa. ¥, Ferd, apd Mary A, fovrd, AT 0@
814y of Nevmrd, Counhiy of Kasax, Stable of ¥aw Jepasy, the pariles
af the FiTat part, and R Robearizos, of the Oaaniy of kpnieray.
State of CAlifornis, ihe party of the ssoahd part, Siunsaseih]
Trai the 2ald pariies of the Tiral gart 40 bereby hiTs o thi
asich parbty oF the seeohd part, for Mhe pericd of onhe month Traa
AL, onA TENS Bohth Lo Bohih thereafisr, Be 0B A8 ihe ALIpIA-
fions herein sre perfurmed ang Lhe payments heraluarier apssified
aTe suly mads, the Coliowing described perscnal proptriy. Lo w1kt
Gre Four RoTse atAge eoach. £1X heraes and thres 3¥ta ol double
parness. | the prics keyesr belug $96¢,001 fer the sun af §RO.00
chsh, and $5%0,00 G.k. I advance, and 350.0¢ per manth Mhereslier
ta e pald an the TiFst dsr of eash minih fov the nipe thereal,
agresing thal when ths sus of $940,.00 ahall bhave fesh a4 oy
the use of sBid PErashAl propeTiy by amld adviner and sonthly.
paymenta, the Aald parties % the firat pert will sell sad deliv-
or to the maid party of the second pari, sald peraonil proneriy
#ith 8 good mnd efveetual Bill of sals ihervead. e '
Satd party of the apsond parl pays ihe mm of 380,00
cnsl, And 50,00 O,%, Iin advance, the reesipt whersal 1 Har
scknowignsed, aml ARFech to pay £5%0.00 per manih, BE sforesn
P the us? of Rald perecnal properiyi 2ath payoehRl 9 b
at ihe orTice of the Chas,Ford Jeepany, & COPPOTStish, in W
vitles Saiifarnis. . : S
11 is underaicod that the aald parilss of the rigat
neliber yark with, nof dess Lhe sald PAPLY of the 2850l
aGatre. ane title to the seid perashal property Wil ihe ¥
satd pries $980,0¢ is fully yald, ad sald propeciy 1R Do%
remaved Cpom Pariase Springs sltbwul Lhe sonsent of g
af the Firat part, snd in oase of AaPauli of Rald ey
either of thes, I herehy sulbarize, eepowsr and Hirss
partisa af the Chiyst pavh, ax =F Bfenis aqd ALLOTRA)
oul logal procsss, Lo taks el Tezdve sald pRrsobAL PR
atd scllect and retain for e wse oF salw all of &
Al have bBave beed paid aa advenck and wONinky pe
nereby oxonersts ihe said pariiss ef she Tiral i
aaanta Tor o doing, from sny and mil elalma ToF
2ine. o e L

AN WITNSSS WHRREOF, %o LEPesito sibae)

tiis 5%t dey of Jume 1888, s

e

Stage sale agreement, found in Journal of William and Mary Ford. Photo taken
with permission of Peter Sonné, 2004.
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INTRODUCTION
Abstract

This evaluation of historical resources was carried out in 2004 for the Paraiso Hot Springs
Hotel & Resort Project in Monterey County. The property is being developed by
Thompson Holdings. The project area is currently closed to the public, however its most
recent use was as a recreational resort. The buildings which are currently extant on the
property consist of fifteen vernacular cabins along the hillside, a changing room, a
recreation room, the indoor bath, the Old Baths, six mobile homes, a lodge, a workshop, a
yurt compound, a miner’s shack, and several small outbuildings. In addition, several
springs and pools are located throughout the property. Some of these springs are of
historic age. In November of 2003, nine cottages and nine cabins were demolished on
the property. The research focused upon the characteristics of these structures which
were demolished, as well as the Paraiso Springs as a complex, and their contribution to
the historic fabric of the County of Monterey. The Springs are currently listed on the
Monterey County Register of Historic Resources. The Paraiso Springs are not currently
listed on the California Register of Historic Resources or the National Register of
Historic Places; however, they appear to be potentially eligible for inclusion in both of
these registers. It is concluded that historic cultural resources with varying levels of
significance have been impacted. Appropriate mitigation measures are discussed in the
conclusion of this report.

Description of the Proposed Project

The project plan map of November 25, 2003, provided by Thompson Holdings, was
consulted in order to determine the potential impacts of the project on historical
resources. The proposed project consists of the demolition of existing structures and the
construction of a resort complex. Although finalized plans are yet to be complete, the
preliminary project map shows that this complex is to include multiple development
areas. Those areas denoted on the provided map include The Institute, The Carriage
House, Pinnacles Plaza, The Hamlet, The Great Lawn, The Hilltown, The Spa Pavilions,
a Garden Center, a Conservatory, an Activity Center, a Summer Theatre, The Casitas, and
seven areas currently identified only as Areas A through F. In addition, the project will
include parking, a network of access roads, installation of utilities, and extensive
landscaping. This will entail the necessary excavation, grading, trenching, and other
earthmoving activities.

Location and Description of the Subject Area

The subject area includes approximately 280 acres of land surrounding the Paraiso Hot
Springs, 34358 Paraiso Springs Road, in Monterey County, California. The Assessor’s
Parcel Number of the property is 418 361 04. The nearest cross-street is Paraiso Road.
On the USGS 7.5 minute quadrangle of Paraiso Springs, the Universal Transverse Merca-
tor Grid (UTMG) the western-most point of the project area is 6 45 800mE/ 40 21
820mN, the southern-most point of the project area is 6 46 575mE/ 40 21 650mN, the
eastern-most point of the project area is 6 47 150mE/40 21 900mN, and the northern-
most point of the project area is 6 46 628mE/ 40 22 350mN. The elevation ranges from
approximately 900 to 1400 feet MSL. The nearest sources of fresh water are the Paraiso
Springs, which run through the proposed project area. :




Qualifications of Archaeological Resource Management

Archaeological Resource Management has been specifically engaged in cultural resource
management projects in central California since 1977. The firm is owned and supervised
by Dr. Robert Cartier, the Principal Investigator. Dr. Cartier has a Ph.D. in anthropology,
and is certified by the Register of Professional Archaeologists (ROPA) for conducting
cultural resource investigations as well as other specialized work in archaeology and
history. He also fulfills the standards set forth by the Secretary of the Interior for
inclusion as a historian and architectural historian and is certified as such on the State of
California referral lists.

Dr. Cartier is listed by the State of California as having professional qualifications in
history, architectural history, and archaeology. The California State Office of Historic
Preservation most recently re-certified these qualifications on January 4th, 2001, with
archaeology listed on page two, architectural history listed on page nine, and history listed
on page twelve. Between 1977 and 2003 Cartier and his firm of Archaeological Resource
Management have completed over 300 evaluations of historic buildings, historic sites,
and HABS Photodocumentation of Historic Structures in Santa Clara County and the
central California area. Over 3,000 archaeological evaluations have been completed
during the last 27 years, including parcel surveys, large area evaluations, freeway
alignment studies, urban planning studies, and jurisdiction wide (city and county) archival
mapping projects. The firm has completed projects for private individuals, local cities
and counties, the Santa Clara Valley Water District, the State of California
(CALTRANS), and Federal Government agencies, as well as purely academic
investigations. :

Size of Firm

A.RM. is comprised of Dr. Cartier and four employees with additional staff hired for
specific needs. The following is a summary of their qualifications:

- Dr. Robert Cartier, Ph.D., Principal Investigator: Dr. Cartier completed his
undergraduate work in anthropology at San Jose State University and earned his M.A.
and Ph.D. in anthropology from Rice University in 1975. He is certified by the Register
of Professional Archaeologists (ROPA) in the categories of teaching, field work, and
cultural resource management. Cartier organized the firm of Archaeological Resource
Management in 1977. Since that time he has been directing archaeological and historical
investigations in Santa Clara County and the central California area. The firm has
completed projects for private individuals, local cities and counties, the Santa Clara
Valley Water District, the State of California (CALTRANS), and the Federal Government
(Army Corps of Engineers), as well as conducting purely academic investigations.

Douglas Jones, Archaeological Technician: joined ARM in February 2000, working full-
time. Mr. Jones is currently a student of archacology. He has written over 100 cultural
and historic evaluations in both CEQA and NEPA formats, and has experience with bone
identification and historic remains. He assists office staff in the preparation of graphics
for report production and in laboratory analysis for catalog production:. He also acts as an
excavator and as a monitor in the field under the direction of Dr. Cartier.

Julie Jones, Office and Field Assistant: joined ARM in April 2001. Since joining she
has spent time researching and writing a number of cultural resource and historic
structure  evaluations in both CEQA and NEPA formats, and compiling




photodocumentations and technical reports. She also assists in photography of structures
and artifacts, and in field monitoring. Ms. Jones is currently a student of anthropology.

Laura Mac Donald, Archaeological Technician: joined ARM in January 2003, working
full-time. She received a B.A. in anthropology, with an emphasis in archaeology, from
San Francisco State University in 2003. Mac Donald has experience in excavation,
mapping of findings and excavations, human osteology, and faunal osteology.

Amador Minares, Field Technician: joined ARM in October of 2003, working part-time.
He received a B.A. in anthropology and Spanish from the University of Notre Dame in
Indiana in 2000. He earned a Masters of Arts in Anthropology in 2003 from Texas A&M
University. He has worked as both an excavator and monitor on archaeological sites in
California as well as Chile.

Research Design and Methodology

The goal of the archival research was to 1) gather data on the structures which were
demolished at Paraiso Hot Springs in November of 2003, 2) to describe the extant
structures and the complex as a whole, and 3) to evaluate their historical and architectural
significance according to guidelines established by the Monterey County Register of
Historic Resources, the California Register of Historic Resources and the National
Register of Historic Places. Each of the extant structures were photographed and
evaluated for architectural and historical significance. Those structures which have been
demolished were evaluated based upon available archival documents, video footage, and
photography. A field survey was completed, along with archival research, in order to
gain a better understanding of both the archaeological prehistory of the project area, and a
detailed history from the beginning of the Mission era to the present.

The study was begun on February 26, 2004 and completed on June 28, 2004 by staff
under the direction of Dr. Robert Cartier, Principal Investigator at A.R.M. Research was
conducted using references at the Northwest Information Center of the California
Historical Resources Information System, the John Steinbeck Library in Salinas, the
County of Monterey Assessors Office, the County of Monterey Recorders Office, the
Monterey County Parks Department, the Patrick Hathaway Historic Photography
Collection, the Monterey County Historical Society, the Seaside Branch of the Monterey
County Free Library, the Monterey City Library and the Soledad City Library, as well as
in-house references at Archaeological Resource Management and records and
photographs stored on-site on the grounds of the Paraiso Hot Springs. Employees and
former tenants of Paraiso Springs, Meg Clovis of the Monterey County Parks
Department, as well as Therese Schmidt and Lynn Mounday of the Monterey County
Planning Department were also consulted.

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND OF THE PROJECT AREA
Ethnographic Background

Early ethnographic accounts of local Native American cultures provide a cultural context
for archaeological studies. The Esselen Indians inhabited the territory along the Central
California coast between Point Lopez and northward to Point Sur, and inland to the
drainages of the northern Carmel River Valley. The understandings of the Esselen from
actual contact and ethnographic research are very limited, but their general cultural
lifeways are basically similar to other coastal Californian prehistoric peoples. They did
have a distinct language that contrasted with their Salinan and Ohlone neighbors, but




otherwise there were many similarities between the Esselen and their northern neighbors -
the Rumsen Ohlone (Hester 1978). It is believed that the Esselen Indians inhabited the
area since A.D. 500, and that speakers of the Hokan language previously inhabited at
least part of the region (Levy 1978). However, it is unclear when the Hokan or even
earlier Paleo-Indians first came to the area. The earliest radiocarbon dates that are
available for the greater area to which the Esselen came to live are 12,000 B.P. (years
before present) at the Scotts Valley site (SCR-177) (Cartier 1993), 3,200 B.P. at the
University Village site (SMA-77) (Gerow 1968), 6,349 B.P. at Palm Canyon (SCL-106)
near Gilroy (Cartier 1980), and 6,628 B.P. at Camden Avenue (SCL-64) (Winter 1978).

The Esselen were gatherers and hunters who utilized only the native flora and fauna with
the exception of one domesticate, the dog. Yet, the abundance and high quality of natural
resources allowed them to settle in semi-sedentary villages. The Esselen were typically
organized in basic political units called "tribelets" that consisted of 100 to 250 members
(Kroeber 1954). The "tribelet" was an autonomous social unit consisting of one or more
permanent villages with smaller villages in a relatively close proximity (Kroeber 1962).
Parties went out from the major villages to locations within the tribal territory to obtain
various resources. :

The proximity of both mountainous and coastal regions in the Monterey Bay area made a
diversity of resources available during different seasons to the native inhabitants. During
the winter months, the low-lying flats near the Monterey Bay have abundant marine and
waterfowl resources, while the nearby mountainous areas are best in the summer months
for their nut, seed, and mammalian resources (King and Hickman 1973). A primary food
source was acorns, abundant in autumn and easily stored for the remainder of the year.
According to Gifford, the acorn industry of California was probably the most char-
acteristic feature of its domestic economy (Gifford 1951). An elaborate process of grind-
ing and leaching acorns is necessary to render them palatable. The acorn industry first be-
came a major source of food in the Middle Period as is indicated by the appearance of
mortars and pestles in the archaeological record (King and Hickman 1973). Other impor-
tant resources include various plant foods, land animals, and the marine resources of the
Monterey Bay. Fishing for salmon and steelhead in the creeks that emptied into
Monterey Bay provided a seasonal resource. Shellfish processing sites were established
above the rocky shores where abalone, mussels, clams, and various tide pool resources
were gathered. Both large and small land mammals were typically hunted, trapped or
poisoned. Many items, including shell beads and ornaments, were extensively traded
with other groups as far away as the Great Basin of Nevada (Davis 1974).

It is argued that contrary to usual conceptions of hunters and gatherers, native Californian
groups, including the Esselen, practiced a form of resource management that was close to
agriculture. Bean and Lawton (1976) consider this pattern a "semi-agricultural” stage
which included quasi-agricultural harvesting activity and proto-agricultural techniques.
Some plants were pruned and reseeded seasonally for optimal production. Foods such as
acorns were stored for many months at a time. Ethnographic accounts also report the
repeated burning of woodlands grassbelt to increase animal and plant resources. It is
likely to have made hunting conditions better by reducing scrubby growth and
encouraging the growth of grasses and other plants that are appealing to grazers such as
deer and elk. The plant growth succession after a burning is also rich in grains and
legumes that were major food sources for Native Californians.

Bean and Lawton also claim that the abundance of plant and animal resources in
California and the development of ingenious technological processes allowed Native Cal-
ifornians to develop social structures beyond the normal parameters of hunting and




gathering.  These include extensive political systems, controlled production and
redistribution of goods, and alliances and trade with other groups.

Prior to contact with Europeans, Native Americans made use of the Paraiso Hot Springs.
Evidence of Native American occupation has been found within the area as a habitation
and a special use site (Smith and Hampson 1984).

Historical Background R .
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The coastal portion of Monterey County was part of lands explored by Captain Gaspar de
Portola in 1769. Mission San Carlos Borromeo was subsequently established in Carmel
on June 3, 1770 by Father Junipero Setra, and the Presidio of Monterey was officially
founded on that same day. The second Mission founded by Father Serra in Monterey
County was the Mission San Antonio de Padua, on July 14, 1771, The closest mission to
the Paraiso Springs was Mission’ Nuestra Senora Dolorisisima de 1a Soledad,

approximately seven miles from the Springs. This mission was established on October 9,
1791 by Father Fermin Francisco De Lausen. |.c.sué -

The fathers at the Spanish missions established the first true agriculture in Alta
California. To feed their inhabitants, they began to raise grain, vegetables, and fruit.
From the initial failures of crops, which were due to the lack of rainfall during the
summer growing season, the fathers learned how to irrigate the fields they planted
(Anderson 2000).

¢ wad 5. 1775 - 1522

~(Land grants)and rancho concessions were presented to settlers and soldiers during the
Spanish Period. A few were granted for Monterey County lands, but most of these were
along the coast. The Paraiso Springs were first identified by the Franciscan friars in
1790, prior to the founding of Mission Soledad. In 1791, King Carlos of Spain officially
granted land to the Church, which included Paraiso Hot Springs, for the purpose of
establishing a mission. The lands directly to the southeast of the springs were cultivated,
and the Paraiso Springs area, now approximately seven miles from the mission, became
known as the Vineyard of Mission Soledad. The Franciscan Padres planted a stand of
palm trees at the Springs in the shape of a cross. ’

The hot springs at Paraiso were first utilized by Native Americans, prior to the time of
European contact. Evidence of Native American occupation in the surrounding areas
dates back several thousand years. During their exploration in the area in 1769, Portola
and Father Juan Crespi are said to have attempted a conversation with a local Indian.
They thought they recognized a single word, soledad, and felt that this was an appropriate
name for this desolate, windy, hot location (Toomey 2001). Father Serra also spoke to a
local Indian in 1771, during his return trip after the founding of Mission Carmel, and the
woman repeated the word that sounded like soledad (Krell 1979). This Spanish word for
“solitude” was used as the name for the mission established here in 1791,

The place name Paraiso is the Spanish term for “paradise.” The original name, attributed
to the mission padres, is variously reported as “Eternidad Paraiso” or “paraiso eterno,”
both of which mean “eternal paradise.” Bathing in and drinking from the springs was
believed to have both refreshing and healing affects. Franciscan friars traveling between
the missions of San Antonio de Padua and Carmel would stop at the Springs to refresh
themselves, and the Mission fathers encouraged the sick to bathe and drink of its waters
for their therapeutic and curative effects. Other names by which this area has been known




include Arsenic Springs, Iron Springs, Paradise Springs, Hot Sulphur Springs, Paraiso
Hot Soda Springs, and even “The Carlsbad of America” (Clark 1991).

At Mission Soledad, the brushwood structure built for the founding was replaced six
years later by the fitst adobe-walled church building. The harsh winds, bitterly cold, wet
winters, and frequent flooding resulted in the destruction of successive church buildings
at the mission and an abnormally high number of priests that served there during the
lifetime of the mission — 30 priests in 44 years. Among the complaints were respiratory
problems and rheumatism.

The earliest priests of Mission Soledad included Mariano Ruby and Bartholomew Gila,
who caused trouble with embarrassing behaviors that had begun in their college days
together. Both were removed from their posts: Ruby left Soledad in 1793, and Gila was
to be sent back to New Spain in 1794. The ship captain, however, prevented his
passenger from disembarking in Baja California, and instead took him to the Philippines
(Toomey 2001). :

Diego Garcia was another early father at Mission Soledad. He and Ruby were the first to
be assigned to Soledad, but Garcia was transferred to Iyli,ssi\on San Antonio after only four
months. Gila replaced him for a few years, but when{Rubiwas removed in 1793, Garcia
returned to Mission Soledad. Garcia’s quick temper and questionable conduct earned
him a reputation for insanity (Guinn 1905). 3

The Franciscan fathers, with neophyte labor, brought redwood timber from the Santa
Cruz Mountains to the hills adjacent to Paraiso Springs and constructed an irrigation
system for their vineyard there. This was the first irrigation system to be built in Central
California.

Florencio Ibanez came to Mission Soledad in 1803. The following years were considered
good ones for the mission. The irrigation system was set in place, the crops were
growing, thousands of head of livestock were being raised by the mission, and it reached
what was probably its highest ever population, 727 Native Americans, in 1805 (Boule
1988). Father Ibenez served for 15 years, longer than many of the other priests at Mission
Soledad. Known for his kindness to the Indians, he died in November, 1818 and was
buried at the church next to his friend, Governor Jose Joaquin de Arrillaga. The governor
had died while visiting the mission four years earlier., At the time of Ibenez’s death, the”™
many people from Santa Cruz and Monterey and the coast missions had taken refuge at
the Soledad Mission. The French pirate, Hippolyte de Bouchard, had recently attacked
Monterey and was burning and looting the city (Hoover, 1990: Orser 1996).

Mexican Period

The Mission Era declined after 1821, when Mexico won its independence from Spain
(Anderson 2000). This period, lasting from 1822 to 1848, was based on cattle raising and
whatever agriculture was necessary for the cattle industry. Land grants of ranchos and the
sale of hides and tallow marked the Mexican Period. Most of the Spanish Period grants ¢,
were confirmed by the Mexican government, and many more new grants were made
under Mexican rule. Missions were secularized under Mexican rule beginning around
1834, and villages of people of European ancestry as well as missionized Native
American families grew in these former mission locations.

The Paraiso Springs were known during the Mexican period, and they were in frequent
use by the missionaries due to their easy accessibility. The Springs remained in the hands
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of the church into the Mexican Period, and were retained by the mission after the
secularization of most mission lands in 1834.

Over the years, more friars had come and left Soledad Mission, epidemics led to death
and flight of the inhabitants, and more flooding destroyed the buildings. Vicente
Francisco Sarria, formerly the Father-President of the missions (1823-1825) and Prefect,
found it impossible to place another padre at the mission after Father Francisco Javier de
Uria left in 1828, Sarria volunteered to take the post, even though an arrest warrant had
been issued against him by the Mexican government. He had refused to take an oath
required after Mexican independence; however, the soldiers at the missions did not want
to risk inciting an uprising by arresting and deporting the beloved father (Orser 1996).
Sarria continued to work with the few Indians who were left at the impoverished and
crumbling mission until his death in 1835. No one replaced Father Sarria at the mission
(Toomey 2001).

An inventory of the mission property in 1836 listed 5,000 vines, which were probably
those at Paraiso Springs (Orser 1996). By 1841, the Native American neophytes of the
mission had all left, and the majority of the mission holdings, including the vineyard
planted adjacent to the Paraiso Springs, were essentially abandoned. In 1845, the
Mexican Governor of Alta California, Pio Pico, sold the Mission and its 8,900 acres of
land to Feliciano Soberanes (Toomey 2001; Coelho 2001).

American Period

By 1846, when Alta California was taken from Mexico by the United States, much of the
good grazing lands along the coast and coastal rivers in California had been granted by
the Spanish or Mexican governments as rancho land. Since the first American
expeditions of 1826, small numbers of Americans had become Mexican citizens and
landowners. The United States Land Commission, beginning in the 1850s, generally
confirmed the titles for those landowners who could show proof of their possession and
occupation of the grant lands. Patents were issued for these properties after the claims
were confirmed. (Clark 1991)

After the beginning of the American Period, the United States Land Office officially
found that the former governor, Pio Pico, had no right to sell the church lands of the -
Soledad Mission. On November 19, 1859, the U.S. government issued a patent to Father
Joseph Sadoc Alemany, Archbishop of San Francisco, for Mission Soledad. According to
Coelho (2001), the 42 acres returned to the Catholic Church along with the Mission did
not include the 20.32 acres that contained the Paraiso Springs.

However, other sources indicate that on August 16, 1866 the Church sold the Springs to
Mr. Pedro Zabala (O’Donnell 1951). Mr. Zabala was born on a farm in Bilgao, in the
province of Biscay, Spain, on June 29 1826. He studied commerce in government
schools, and took a job as a clerk in Bilgao. In 1843 he left Spain for South America,
settling in Valparaiso, Chile. There he found employment at a large importing and
shipping house. Five years later he was sent to San Francisco to determine the feasibility
of opening a branch of the shipping company in that city. He arrived in San Francisco on
February 20, 1849 and after selling his cargo, he left for the gold mines. He met with
little success as a miner, and planned to return to Chile. However, before arriving back in
San Francisco he heard stories of the excellent climate and advantageous harbor in
Monterey. Mr. Zabala moved to Monterey on October 1, 1849 (Barrows and Ingersoll
1893).




In Monterey, Pedro Zabala went into business with Don Jose Abrego. He supplied
merchandise to the miners and continued in this lucrative trade for nine years. After the
beginning of the American Period, Zabala began purchasing large tracts of land near
Salinas and other areas of Monterey County at very low prices. He then retired from his
other commercial ventures to devote his energy to cultivation, and especially the raising
of livestock. Zabala married Anna Hartnell, daughter of the pioneer William E. P.
Hartnell, in April of 1859, and together they had fifteen children (Barrows and Ingersoll
1893). Many members of the Zabala family went on to become prominent in the local
community. Pedro and Anna’s oldest son, Peter Zabala, became District Attorney of
Monterey County in 1892 (Gonzales Tribune 1894).

Pedro Zabala owned the Springs from April 16, 1866 until October 12, 1874, at which
time they were sold to Reeve Bros. and Ledyard Fine. Mr. Fine was born in 1808, a
native of Tennessee. He married Martha Cox and had five children. In 1849 he moved to
California, and after establishing himself he brought his wife and two of his five children
to the state in 1854 (Vera 1970). :

It was at this time that the Paraiso Springs first began to be operated as a commercial
resort. The eatliest post office for Paraiso Springs was established in January of 1877, and
its first postmaster was Oscar A. Reeve (Vera 1970c; Coelho 2001). The Reeve and Fine
partnership owned the Springs between 1874 and 1885.

The precise ownership and transfer of property titles is unclear between 1885 and 1889.
On January 2, 1885, the Bryant family purchased the Springs (O’Donnell 1951). Several
people at this point appear to have become partners or partial owners of the springs
including an L. A. Whitehurst, and a Mr. George E. Hersey. In addition, some documents
indicate that both the Reeve and Fine families were still involved with the operation of
the resort, however different documentary sources contradict each other (See Table 3 at
the end of this section). It was either leased (Lewis n.d.) or purchased by Captain J. G.
Foster in 1886 and his son Edwin James Foster (Vera 1970b). Captain Foster, native of
Massachusetts, had been a steamboat captain for thirty-five years. He purchased the
International Hotel in San Francisco in 1860, and in 1863 he founded the Cliff House,
which became one of the most well known hotels in San Francisco. Edwin had been
living in San Francisco since his infancy, and had been brought up in the hotel business.
Captain Foster decided to leave San Francisco to operate the Paraiso Springs because of
stress from business and ill health (Harrison 1889). Foster advertised his resort with
pictorial business cards; an 1886 example is shown in Appendix G of this report. In June
of 1887 the Bank of Gilroy foreclosed on the property, and took possession of the Springs
(O’Donnell 1951).

The Paraiso Springs were purchased from the Bank of Gilroy in 1889 by a Mr. Charles
Ford. Charles Ford was the founder of a mercantile store in Watsonville, and the Co-
founder of Ford & Sanborn in Salinas and King City. Mr. Ford also briefly acted as
postmaster for Paraiso; however, in December 1890 this job was passed to Charles T.
Romie, who served until 1899 (Vera 1970b; Coelho 2001). Ford constructed the original
hotel, with a wide piazza around the outside. Ten of the original tent cabins were
remodeled as redwood cabins at this time, under the direction of F. A. Pierce (Lewis n.d.).

In the early 1890s Charles Ford died, leaving the Springs to his brother and sister,
William and Mary Ford. By this time Paraiso Springs was a famous resort that was
reached by stage from the Southern Pacific station at Soledad. Winslow Anderson,
writing in 1892, described the retreat as containing paths through “cultivated grounds and
gardens” and a hotel and cottages that were considered luxurious and comfortable. The
Paraiso Springs were reputed to cure a multitude of ailments including rheumatism,




malaria, stomach troubles, disorders of the liver and kidneys, nervous complaints, female
irregularities, headaches, dyspepsia, neuralgia, eczema, poison oak, and all skin diseases
(Lewis, n.d.). It was during the 1890s that the large resort hotel was constructed, and it
remained the principal structure on the property until it was burned down on July 21,
1928 (Soledad Bee 1928).

William and Mary Ford kept records of income and expenses, salaries paid, and other
transactions in a set of ledgers, which have been recently acquired by Mr. Peter Sonné of
Monterey. These ledgers include a notation in 1895 that recounts the sale by the Fords of
the stagecoach and horses which were used for transporting visitors to the springs.
Certain pages of the ledger have been photographed and are reproduced in Appendix G
following this report.

The therapeutic spring waters were not the only attraction for visitors at the Paraiso
Springs. The rugged and picturesque natural landscape provided both aesthetic
enjoyment, and a habitat for the quails, rabbits, and other animals eagerly hunted by
Paraiso patrons. The nearby Salinas river and smaller local streams held an abundance of
steelhead and salmon for fishing. Social pleasures were available at Paraiso as well. A
dance hall, billiards tables, picnics, and barbeques all provided opportunities for public
interaction, yet outlying cabins were available for those looking for restful quiet and
solitude. Children were provided with their own games and entertainment, including
donkey rides. All of these factors, as well as the famous healing properties of the springs
themselves, contributed to making Paraiso one of the most well known, and popular
resorts in California. Four to five hundred people came to the springs each summer. A
visitor in the 1880s remarked that he had encountered a train of wagons, carrying tents
and beds, following the rugged trail up to Paraiso Springs. He estimated that they were
“20 to 30 persons, all from San Jose, and probably two thirds of them women. They were
fashionably dressed, some riding horses” (Vera 1970b).

In March of 1899 the Paraiso Springs were purchased by Charles Theodore Romie
(O’Donnell 1951), and Julian T. Perrault briefly replaced him as postmaster there from
1899 to 1901 (Coelho 2001). According to Guinn (1905), Charles Romie was born in
Hamburg, Germany in 1837, but was educated in the United States. He had settled in the
Arroyo Seco section in 1854 and had acquired substantial agricultural interests outside of
Soledad. The Great Register of 1890 for Monterey County lists Charles Romie as a
farmer who came to Soledad in 1857 and was originally from Prussia. Romie’s sister was
Mary C. Jacks, the wife of David Jacks (Barrows and Ingersoll 1893), or “Monterey
Jack”, who was a land speculator, one-time owner of the majority of the Monterey
Peninsula, and marketer of the cheese which bears his name. Romie had been a
Supervisor for Monterey County. He was also a prominent landowner. In 1897 he sold a
520 acre tract of land known as the Ranchita Rancho to the Salvation Army. This land
was to become the first of the Salvation Army’s reformist colonization experiments, and
was named after the lands previous owner “Fort Romie”. Charles Romie remained
associated with the project long after he sold the land, and assisted in setting up the early
farming activities on the colony by putting his horse team at their disposal (Orser 1996).

Romie had been involved with the Springs for many years before purchasing them; he
had already served as postmaster for ten years, and the ledgers kept by William and Mary
Ford also show that Romie had been employed by them during their management.
However, it was less than five years after purchasing the property that Romie died, on
January 5, 1904. That year, the bottled soda water from Paraiso Springs billed as “Radio
Active Arsenic Spring” won a prize at the 1904 World’s Fair in St. Louis, Missouri (Alta
Vista Magazine 1990). Fredrick W. Schroeder had managed the resort for Romie (Vera




1970c), and assumed the job of postmaster at Paraiso in 1904 (Coelho 2001). Schroeder
had previously been the manager of the Hotel Jeffery in Salinas (Vera 1970c).

Charles Romie left the Paraiso Springs property to his nephews, Ernest and Karl Romie.
Karl was a minor at that time, and on December 2, 1906, Paul T. Romie, Karl’s father and
the youngest brother of Charles and Mary Romie (Guinn 1905), petitioned to be allowed
to sell the Springs. Paul’s petition was granted by the court in February of 1907, and he
sold the property at auction in Salinas in March of that year to Henry H. and Alice
McGowan (O’Donnell 1951). McGowan became postmaster at Paraiso in 1907. He
assumed the job from Frederick F. Romie, who had served since 1905 (Coelho 2001).

The owners of the Paraiso Springs allowed their wealthy clientele to construct their own
accommodations on the property. One such patron of the Paraiso Springs was Claus
Spreckels, who constructed his own cabin on the property near the turn of the 20"
century. Spreckels, who came to the United States from Germany in 1846, started the
Western Beet Sugar Company in Watsonville in 1888 and was supplied with beets by
farmers near Watsonville and by others near Salinas. His refinery, the Spreckels Sugar
Factory, built on the banks of the Salinas River east of Hilltown, was completed in 1899.
The Spreckels factory, which was more efficient than the Watsonville refinery, forced the
closure of the Watsonville location. The Salinas Valley soon became the largest producer
of beets in the region (Breschini 2000). The factory was part of a planned community of
small plot farmers who sold their crops to the factory, and field workers who lived in
company houses. These houses were designed by the architect William Weeks, well-
known for his design of schools and homes in California.

William Weeks may have had a closer association with Paraiso Springs, however. An
undated clipping on file at the Monterey County Parks Department states that in 1908
Weeks designed an addition to the hotel at the springs (See Appendix G).

Henry H. McGowan was a native of California, and came from an old San Francisco
family (Monterey American 1913). The McGowan family worked to increase the fame of
the Paraiso Springs, having colored postcards featuring the Springs and its buildings and
pools made in Germany (Lewis n.d.). Henry McGowan died in June of 1913; however,
his wife continued to operate the springs until 1915, when it was purchased by Mr. and
Mrs. Neuman. Harry W. McGowan had held the position of postmaster in 1914, and in
1915 Mary C. Neuman took the position (Coelho 2001). The Springs went through a
rapid transition of owners for the next several years, being purchased by the Brandt
Brothers and Frank Daniels in 1917, and a Mr. Riley and Mr. Enquist in 1920 (O’Donnell
1951).

Dr. Thomas N. and Olaf B. Petersen purchased the springs in 1924, Dr. Petersen was a
chiropractor. As mentioned above, the Paraiso Springs resort suffered a major fire on the
21%of July, 1928. The fire apparently started in the kitchen of the hotel (Bird 1971). The
hotel, two of the bath houses, a garage, the dance hall, and some other, smaller buildings
were destroyed. Several of the old palm trees were burned, including one described as
the tallest in California (Soledad bee 1928). However, the Petersens re-opened the resort
within the next few years.

Thomas Petersen was the last postmaster at Paraiso, serving from 1927 until the office
was closed at the end of 1938. It was moved to Soledad in 1939. Between Mrs. Neuman
and Petersen, postmasters included John Tondorf in 1917, Richard Lebeau in 1922, and
John Tondorf again in 1923 (Coelho 2001).
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The next owners of the Paraiso springs were Mr. and Mrs. Otto Barrett, who purchased
the property from the Petersens circa 1950. They renovated several of the buildings, as
well as installing the swimming pools. In 1954, the resort was again struck by fire, and
many of the buildings, including the new hotel structure and the Annex, were destroyed.
The Barretts owned and operated the Springs until 1971, when they were purchased by
Marge and Warren Perrine (Alta Vista Magazine 1990).

Marge and Warren Perrine came to Monterey County from Southern California and
settled first in Pebble Beach before purchasing the springs (Rodriguez 1990). They had
both graduated with engineering degrees from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in Troy,
New York (Rodriguez, 1990). The Perrines formed Paraiso Inc., with Warren Perrine
serving as President. They hired Mrs. Jacqueline Revis to manage the springs, and
employed Mr. Ole Hellekson to reconstruct the Victorian cabins which had been damaged
or destroyed in the 1954 fire (Bird 1971). In 1971 the Perrines also automated the Spa.
Around 1990 the Perrines constructed a yurt compound on the property. A yurt is a
domed circular canvas tent stretched over a wooden frame. This compound was often
utilized by Sufi’s, a mystical Islamic sect. In 1995 flooding and mudslides damaged the
property, and the Perrines reopened the resort in 1996 after repairs including installing
new fiberglass in the pools, replacing wooden floorboards and fencing, and repaneling the
recreation room.

Paraiso Springs is currently owned by John and Bill Thompson of Thompson Holdings in
Pennsylvania who purchased the property in 1999.

Table 3: Chronological Summary of Paraiso Springs History

Date Owner Event Source
1790 Paraiso Springs were | Clark, 1991
identified by
Franciscan

missjonaries before
Soledad Mission was
founded

1791 Catholic Church King Carlos of Spain | O’Donnell, in
granted land including | Peninsula Diary,

P. H. S. to Spanish 1951.; Bird, in The
Padres to establish Land, 1971; Vera, in

Mission Soledad Salinas Californian,
11/21/70

1791 Soledad Mission 5,000 vines planted by | O’Donnell, in
Mission fathers, Peninsula Diary,
Paraiso Springs 1951.; Bird, in The
known as the vineyard | Land, 1971;
of the Soledad
Mission

1790s Catholic Church Mission fathers Rodriguez, in Alta
planted palm trees in | Vista Magazine,
shape of a cross 10/14/90

1846 Feliciano Soberanes Purchased 8,900 acres | Hoover, 1990

of mission lands
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March 3, 1851

Father Joseph
Alemany (Roman
Catholic Bishop of
Diocese of Monterey)

Received grant for
Mission lands on
behalf of Catholic
Church

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951.

1854 Charles Romie Settled in Arroyo Biography clippings
Seco section in 1850s | file at Monterey City
Library (California
History Room)
November 19, 1859 Father Joseph U.S. issued patentto | O’Donnell, in
Alemany the grant Peninsula Diary,
A 1951.
August 16, 1866 Pedro Zabala Purchased from O’Donnell, in
Catholic Church Peninsula Diary,
1951,
October 12, 1874 Reeve Bros. & Purchased Paraiso O’Donnell, in
Ledyard Fine Springs from Zabala; | Peninsula Diary,
partnership 1951.

established Paraiso
Springs as a resort

1874

O. H. Reeve, H. F.
Reeve, and Ledyard
Fine

Received deed to the
land from Zabala

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

July 13, 1877

Reeve Bros. &
Ledyard Fine

Oscar A. Reeve was
made first postmaster

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/28/70;
Coelho, 2001

1870s

Mrs, Charlotte Reeve
and Mrs. H. F. Bryant

Presented with gift
deeds by O. A. Reeve

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

January 2, 1885

B. Bryant and H. F.
Bryant

Portions of Springs
deeded from (O. A.)
Reeve and Fine,
according to Dr.
Petersen

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951.; Vera, in
Salinas Californian,
11/21/70

September 4, 1885

L. A. Whitehurst and
George E. Hersey

Received a quitclaim
deed from Reeves and
Mrs. H. F. Bryant

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

May 19, 1886

Bryant family,
Reeves, and Fine

Captain J. C. Foster,
leased Paraiso Springs
from 1886 to 1891
from Reeves and Fine

Lewis, in Special to
the Californian, n.d.;
Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

1886 Capt. J. G. Foster “Bought” Paraiso Vera, in Salinas
Springs with his son, | Californian, 11/28/70
Edwin J. Foster

June, 1887 Bryant family Bank of Gilroy O’Donnell, in
foreclosed on Paraiso | Peninsula Diary,
Springs & took 1951,
possession

1889 Bank of Gilroy, Dr. B. | Named as owners of | Harrison, 1889

Bryant, and L. Fine

Paraiso Springs
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April 3, 1889

Bank of Gilroy

O. A.Reeve and H. A.
Reeve presented a
quitclaim deed

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

April 3, 1889

L. A. Whitehurst and
George E. Hersey

Made assignees of
estates of O. A, Reeve
and H. A. Reeve

Vera, in Salinas
Californian, 11/21/70

April 3, 1889 Charles Ford Purchased Paraiso O’Donnell, in
Springs from Bank of | Peninsula Diary,
Gilroy 1951.

April, 1889 Charles Ford Portions of township | Vera, in Salinas
section conveyed Californian, 11/21/70
from O. A. Reeve,

Whitehurst, and
Hersey by Bank of
Gilroy :

1889 Charles Ford F.A. Pierce, a builder, | Lewis, in Special to
was working to the Californian, n.d.
refurbish by May
1889

1889 Charles Ford Mr. Robinson was O’Donnell, in
manager for Ford Peninsula Diary,

1951.

1890 Charles Ford Ford became Vera, in Salinas
postmaster; later that | Californian, 11/28/70;
year, Charles T. Coelho, 2001
Romie took the post

November 16, 1890 Charles Ford Died, leaving bulk of | Lewis, in Special to
estate including the Californian, n.d.
Paraiso Springs to his
brother and sister,

William and Mary
Ford
Large resort hotel

1890s Fords built Hoover, 1990

November, 1892 William and Mary Took over Ford ledgers and
Ford management of journals, 1892-1899

Paraiso Springs

1892 William and Mary E. J. Foster was Lewis, in Special to
Ford manager the Californian, n.d.

1899 William and Mary Julian T. Perrault was | Vera, in Salinas
Ford postmaster Californian, 11/28/70;

Coelho, 2001

March, 1899 Charles T. Romie Purchased property O’Donnell, in

from Ford estate; Peninsula Diary, -

Paraiso Springs
managet now F. W,
Schroeder of Salinas

1951.; Vera, in
Salinas Californian,
12/5/170
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January 5, 1904

Charles Romie

Died; property
inherited by nephews,
Karl and Ernest
Romie; Karl was a
minor

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951.

1904

Paraiso Soda Water
won first prize at St.
Louis World Fair;
water billed as from
"Radio Active
Arsenic Spring"

Rodriguez, in Alta
Vista Magazine,
10/14/90; Pamphlet
from Paraiso Springs,
n.d.

December 2, 1906

Karl & Ernest Romie

Karl's father, Paul T.
Romie, as guardian,
petitioned to sell P. S.

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951,

February, 1907

Karl & Ernest Romie

Court granted petition

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951.

1907 Henry H. McGowan Became owner and Lewis, in Special to
had colored postcards | the Californian, n.d.
made in Germany

March, 1907 Mr. and Mrs. Henry Purchased at auction | O’Donnell, in

: H. McGowan in Salinas Peninsula Diary,
1951.
June, 1913 Mr. and Mrs. Henry Mr. McGowan died; O’Donnell, in
H. McGowan Mrs. Alice McGowan | Peninsula Diary,
continued to operate 1951.
P.S.
1915 Mr. and Mrs. H. E. purchased from Alice | O’Donnell, in
Neuman McGowan Peninsula Diary,
1951.
1917 Brandt Brothers & Bought P.S. from O’Donnell, in

Frank Daniels

Neumans

Peninsula Diary,
1951,

January, 1920

Riley & Enquist

Purchased from

O’Donne]l, in

Brandt & Daniels Peninsula Diary,
1951.
March 6, 1924 Olaf B. and Anna G. | Purchased from Riley | O’Donnell, in
Petersen & Enquist Peninsula Diary,
1951.; Vera, in the
Salinas Californian,
12/5/70
1920s Dr. and Mrs. Thomas | Son of Olaf and Anna | Vera, in the Salinas
Petersen Petersen, acquired Californian, 12/5/70
Paraiso Springs
June 7, 1928 Dr. T. N. Petersen Ad in newspaper - Peninsula Daily
contact person given | Herald, 6/7/28

as O, B. Petersen
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July 21, 1928

O.B.and T. N.
Petersen

Fire started in hotel
kitchen, burned
buildings including
the Ranch, the White
House, the Hotel, and
one palm tree

Monterey County
Herald 12/8/03;
Peninsula Diary, n.d.;
Soledad Bee, July
1928; Bird, in The
Land, December 1971

November, 1950

Otto T. and Joicy
Barrett

Purchased Paraiso
Springs from
Petersens; renovated
buildings, built
swimming pools

O’Donnell, in
Peninsula Diary,
1951.; Vera, in
Salinas Californian,
12\5\70

1954 Mr. and Mrs. Otto Fire burned buildings | Monterey County
Barrett including the Annex, | Herald 12/8/03;
and only one palm Hoover, 1990; Special
tree to the Californian, by
Betty Lewis, n.d.
1954-1970 Roy and Jacqueline Barretts sold to Vera, in Salinas
Ramey Rameys, then re- Californian, 12\5\70
acquired Paraiso
Springs
1971 Mr. & Mrs. Otto Sold Paraiso Springs | Rodriguez, in Alta
Barrett to Warren and Marge | Vista Magazine,
Perrine 10/14/90
1971 Warren and Marge Mrs. Jacqueline Bird, in The Land,
Perrine Revis, daughter of the | December 1971;
Barretts, was manager | Vera, in Salinas
of the Springs Californian, 12/5/70
1980s Warren and Marge Added a yurt Alta Vista Magazine,
Perrine compound 10/14/90
1990 Warren and Marge Josie Lopez became Lordan, in Monterey
Perrine office manager, and County Herald,
Mr. Ole Hellekson 3/18/96
helped to reconstruct
Victorian cottages
1995 Warren and Marge Mudslides and floods | Lordan, in Monterey
Perrine damaged road, bath County Herald,
areas, and recreation 3/18/96
room, buildings
repaired, pools
equipped with
fiberglass, spa
automated
March, 1999 John & Bill Purchased Paraiso Howe, in Monterey
Thompson Springs; in November | County Herald,
2003 demolished 12/8/03; Lopez,
cabins and cottages personal
communication
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ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION OF THE STRUCTURES

This portion of the report describes the existing structures on the property, as well as
previously existing structures.

Existing Structures

The existing structures on the subject property include 15 vernacular cabins along the
hillside, a changing room, a recreation room, six mobile homes, a lodge, a workshop, a
yurt compound, a miner’s shack (apparently outside the known project boundaries), and
several small outbuildings. In addition the complex includes a swimming pool, a
“conversation pool,” an indoor bath, and the Old Bath area. See Appendix D: Current
and Recent Photographs for pictures of these structures.

Fifteen Vernacular Cabins

The cabins are single story vernacular wooden frame structures of identical construction.
Based upon visual examination and available archival information, the cabins are thought
to have been built in 1972. Each of the cabins is side gabled with a shallow pitched roof
and narrowly overhanging eaves. Exterior walls are surfaced with vertical wooden siding
in a board and batten pattern. Windows are aluminum framed in a sliding configuration.
The interior of the cabins consists of a single room containing bedroom and basic kitchen
facilities.

One bathhouse is located within the circle of hillside cabins. This bathhouse contains
bathroom and shower facilities and is built in the same style as the cabins.

Changing Room

The changing room building is located northwest of the main swimming pool. This
building is side gabled with a moderately pitched roof surfaced with composition
shingles. The exterior walls are surfaced with stucco, painted brown. The windows are
multi-paned in a casement configuration. A large natural stone fireplace and chimney are
located in a covered sitting area.

Recreation Room

The recreation room is located to the south of the main swimming pool. The roof of the
structure is front gabled and moderately pitched, surfaced with composition shingles.
Vertical wooden siding in a board and batten pattern is used to surface the exterior walls.
Most of the windows are wooden framed; however, a small addition to the side of the
structure contains multi-paned wooden framed windows. This portion of the structure is
covered by a shed roof of lower pitch than the main portion. A small palm tree grows
adjacent to the structure and up through a hole in the eaves. A game room and a fitness
room make up the main portion of the structure. The small addition contains a massage
room,

Mobile Homes
Six mobile homes are present on the property. These structures have flat roofs with
broadly overhanging awnings. Each mobile home is surfaced with aluminum siding and

is placed on a temporary wooden foundation. These mobile homes were brought to the
property in the 1970’s (Lopez 2004).
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Lodge

The original portion of the lodge appears to have been a cross-gabled structure with a
shallow pitched roof. This part of the structure has a soil-cement foundation. Additional
portions were subsequently added to three sides of the building, substantially altering its
size and appearance. On the earliest portions of the structure, the exterior walls are
surfaced with horizontal wooden shiplap siding. Other sections of the structure are
surfaced with flush vertical wooden siding, stucco, and brick. The contemporary “front”
of the structure includes a raised deck. Windows throughout the majority of the structure
are aluminum framed; however, a few wooden framed windows are currently present at
the rear of the structure. The interior of the lodge contains a living room, an office area,
an open room, a snack bar, a dining room, a kitchen, a bathroom, a laundry room, and
several storage rooms.

Yurt Compound

The yurt compound includes one large building and two smaller buildings. Each of these
buildings is based upon a tent-like structure originally found on the West Asian Steppe
known as a yurt. A yurt is made of a circular wooden frame, over which is stretched hide
or cloth walls. Yurts were utilized by nomadic horsemen such as the Mongols, due to the
fact that they could be easily assembled and disassembled, or even picked up and moved,
while traveling from place to place. The modern yurt structures at Paraiso Springs are
constructed of a wooden frame covered by a double layer of stretched canvas; however,
they retain the basic circular form. The main large yurt is known as Sage. The yurt
known as “Chamise” contains a kitchen, and the smallest structure, known as “Oak” is a
wooden outhouse. Two utility sheds are located adjacent to the yurt compound and are
labeled on the Paraiso Springs map as “Gabilan” and “Santa Lucia.”

Workshop

The workshop is a long narrow building, with a side gabled roof. Surfaced with
composition shingles, the roof is steeply pitched, with open and exposed eaves. The
exterior walls of the workshop are surfaced with flush horizontal wooden siding along the
longer sides, and flush vertical wooden siding at either end. All exterior walls are painted
white. This structure is placed upon a thick concrete and natural stone slab foundation.
Large double doors along the end of the front side of the structure allow vehicular access.

Miner’s Shack

The “miners shack” is located along the path to the west apparently outside of the Paraiso
Springs property and is in extremely poor condition. This structure appears to have been
constructed in the early 20 century, and newspaper clippings from 1912 were found
beneath the floor (Rutkoff 2004). The roof of the shack is in a salt-box configuration and
surfaced with heavily rusted metal sheeting. Remaining portions of the exterior walls
consist of untreated vertical wooden siding. It is probably outside the property of Paraiso
Springs, although this is not certain.

Indoor Bath

The indoor bath is a simple, square structure lacking in architectural detailing. The roof
is flat, and exterior walls are surfaced with wooden paneling. It is almost entirely
obscured by vegetation growth. The interior consists of four blank walls, with a single
window. The entire interior is taken up by the hot bath.
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Old Bath

The “Old Baths” are in two locations, above and below the existing lodge. Those above
the lodge are constructed of concrete, lined with ceramic tiles, and are in very poor
condition. Those below the lodge were possibly constructed circa 1890’s, and are
currently enclosed in a lattice work wooden frame shelter.. (See Current Photographs
numbers 14 and 15 in Appendix D, and Historic Photographs numbers 18 and 25 in
Appendix C).

Table 1: Summary of Existing Structures

Structure Approximate Age | Architectural Style | Significance

Lodge Majority of Modern vernacular, | Historic portions have lost
structure is modern, integrity due to subsequent
historic portion in reconstruction and
rear circa 1910s additions, Non-Significant

Hillside Cabins (15) | Built 1972 Vernacular Non-Significant

Mobile Homes (8) Modern Contemporary Folk | Non-Significant

Recreation Room Modern Vernacular Non-Significant

Changing Room Modern Vernacular Non-Significant

Old Baths below 1890s N/A Low Significance due to

lodge loss of integrity

Indoor Bath Modern Vernacular Non-Significant

Workshop Circa 1940s Vernacular Non-Significant

Yurt Compound Modern Exotic Revival Non-Significant

Miner’s Shack Built prior to 1912 _ | National Folk Non-Significant

Restrooms and Modern Vernacular Non-Significant

Shower Facilities

Structures Demolished in November of 2003

The structures described below were demolished in November of 2003. Photographs of
these Structures can be found in Appendix C: Historic Photographs, and Appendix D
under the subheading of Recent Photographs.

Evergreen Cottage

This structure was side gabled, with a steeply pitched roof, surfaced with composition
shingles. A large centrally placed bay was surmounted by a lower, less steeply pitched
front gable. The eaves of this bay featured decorative wooden verge-boards. The primary
entrance appears to have been located at the side of this bay, Surfaced with vertical
wooden siding, the exterior walls were painted white, with dark brown trim. All of the
windows visible in available documentary footage appear to be multi-paned, with broad
wooden frames. Due to the number of important historical personages who stayed there,
including an unconfirmed reference to President James Buchanan, and the impressiveness
of its architecture, this structure was also known as the “Governor’s Mansion” (Alta Vista
Magazine 1990). Based upon available archival documentation, the Evergreen cottage
appears to have been constructed circa 1890s, however it is difficult to verify this as the
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structure had been heavily altered. Due to its possible historic associations and
architectural merit, this structure may have had a high level of potential significance.

Brightside Cottage

Based upon archival information and photography, Brightside Cottage was originally
known as “La Chapelle” (Vera 1970c). This two story Victorian cottage had a front
gabled, steeply pitched roof, with narrowly overhanging enclosed eaves. A single story
side gabled wing extended from the southern fagade of the cottage. The exterior walls
were surfaced with horizontal wooden siding. A full length porch with multiple entries
stretched across the entire front fagade of the structure, covered by a projecting shed roof
with wooden support brackets. Based upon available archival documentation, Brightside
Cottage appears to have been constructed circa 1890s; however it is difficult to verify this
as the structure had been heavily altered. This structure appears to have had a moderate
level of potential significance. -

\ﬂé w
Monterey Cottage

This two story cottage had a modified front gabled roof, with a shed roof extending over a
large addition. The font gabled portion of the roof was moderately pitched, and the
extended shed roof extends at a much lower angle. On all portions of the roof, the eaves
were enclosed and narrow. Surfaced with horizontal wooden siding, the exterior walls of
the Monterey Cottage were painted white with dark brown trim. The front fagade of the
original portion of the structure was classical in layout and symmetry, with a centrally
placed entry door flanked by two full length rectangular windows on the first floor, and
three windows on the second. Each of these windows, as well as the door, was
surmounted by thick wooden lintels. The addition, on the northern side of the cottage,
added an element of asymmetry to the structure, and contains only a single window on the
first floor of the front fagade. Based upon available archival documentation, Monterey
Cottage appears to have been constructed circa 1890s; however it is difficult to verify this
as the structure had been heavily altered, including the construction of the large addition.
This structure appears to have had a moderate level of potential significance.

Cyprus Cottage

The Cyprus cottage was side gabled, with a moderately pitched roof surfaced with green
composition shingles. The eaves were narrow, with enclosed rafters. Broad horizontal
wooden siding, painted white, was utilized for the exterior walls of the main portion of
the cottage. However, an addition with narrow vertical wooden siding had been attached
to the rear of this structure. The front fagade featured a full length porch with an
extending shed roof, supported by unfinished wooden beams, giving the cottage a rustic
appearance. This raised porch was placed upon a foundation of natural stone, which was
also used for the front steps. A small sign attached to the structure above the porch read
“Cyprus.” Based upon available archival documentation, the Cyprus cottage appears to
have been constructed circa 1890s; however it is difficult to verify this as the structure
had been heavily altered, including the reconstruction of the front porch. This structure
appears to have had a moderate level of potential significance.

Romie Cottage
The Romie cottage was identified by a small wooden sign placed above the front entrance
reading “Romie.” Front gabled, the roof was steeply pitched and surfaced with red

composition shingles. The eaves were very narrow, with exposed rafters. Surfaced with
flush vertical wooden siding, the exterior walls were painted white. Shingle siding in a
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fish tail pattern was present beneath the front gable. An open, full length porch covered
by an extending shed roof dominated the front fagade. This porch roof was surfaced with
green roll out roofing, and was supported by simple bracketed posts. The windows of this
structure were wooden framed, in a double hung sash configuration. The interior of this
cabin included a combined kitchen, dining room, sitting room area, as well as a single
bedroom and bathroom. A fireplace was present; however, this had been boarded over at
the time when the last tenant occupied the structure (Nichols 2004). Based upon
available archival documentation, the Romie cottage appears to have been constructed by
Charles Romie for his personal use circa 1890s; however it is difficult to verify this as the
structure had been heavily altered, including the reconstruction of the front porch. Due to o
its historic association with Charles Romie, this structure appears to have had a moderate;, ' 7
to high level of potential significance. e

e o
Buena Vista Cottage st \g?ﬁ WOLIAN
Buena Vista was identified by a small sign placed centrally on the front fagade which read
“Buena Vista.” Steeply pitched, the roof of this structure was cross-gabled, and surfaced
with green composition shingles. The exterior walls were surfaced with ship-lap wooden
siding, painted white. Shingle siding in a fishtail pattern was present beneath the gables.
A large full length front porch dominated the front fagade of this structure. The roof of
this porch extended at moderate pitch from the front fagade, and included a smaller
centrally placed gable which echoed the primary gable above it. Decorative bracing and
ridge work identify this structure as being in the Victorian style. Based upon available |j
archival documentation, the Buena Vista cottage appears to have been constructed circa * <
1890s; however it is difficult to verify this as the structure had been heavily altered, po
including the reconstruction of the front porch. Due to its architectural merit, this i
structure appears to have had a high level of potential significance. '

Antlers Cottage

The Antlers cottage was identified by a small sign above the front porch which read
“Antlers” and was surmounted by a small pair of antlers. Pyramidally hipped, the roof of
this structure was surfaced with green composition shingles prior to its demolition. The
exterior walls were surfaced with ship-lap horizontal wooden siding, painted white. A
full length, semi-enclosed porch dominated the front fagade of this structure. This porch
had been replaced within the last ten years. New aluminum framed windows had also
been added (Lopez 2004). Wooden cut-out flowers of several different colors had been
attached along the base of the side walls of this structure. Based upon available archival
documentation, Antlers Cottage appears to have been constructed circa 1890s; however it
is difficult to verify this as the structure had been heavily altered, including the
reconstruction of the front porch. This structure appears to have had a moderate level of
potential significance.

Pioneer Cottage

“Pioneer” was a small cottage with a side gabled roof. The roof was moderately pitched,
and surfaced with composition shingles. The exterior walls were surfaced with horizontal
ship-lap wooden siding, painted white. Based upon available photographic records, the
windows of this structure were wooden framed and multi-paned. A full length front
porch dominates the front fagade of the building. This porch was recently rebuilt. One of
the front windows had also been moved (Lopez 2004). Based upon available archival
documentation, the Pioneer cottage appears to have been constructed circa 1890s; .
however it is difficult to verify this as the structure had been heavily altered, including the
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reconstruction of the front porch. This structure appears to have had a low to moderate
level of potential significance.

Outlook Cottage

Only one historic photograph depicting Outlook Cottage was found during research for
this report. This photograph, taken circa 1900, shows only the eastern corner of the
structure; the remainder is obscured by vegetation. The structure appears to be a small
side gabled cottage. Based upon verbal interviews, it is likely that the Outlook cottage
which was demolished in November of 2003 was not the original. Former Paraiso
resident Josh Rutkoff noted that this cottage was smaller and featured less architectural
detailing than many of the other cottages (Rutkoff 2004). The current owner, John
Thompson of Thompson Holdings, suggests that this cottage, along with Hillside and
Solana Cottages, and the Palm Court Cabins, may have been transported onsite in the late
1960s from their original location on the Fort Hunter-Liggett Military Reservation
(Thompson 2004). Due to its lack of historic integrity or -architectural merit, this
structure appears to have been non-significant.

Solana Cottage

One historic photograph depicting Solana Cottage was found during research for this
report. This photograph, taken circa 1900, shows Solana as a small side gabled cottage.
The entry was centrally placed, and covered by a shed roofed porch. A more recent
photograph, taken in the 1990s by Josie Lopez, Paraiso Office Manager, depicts the rear
portion of this structure. Based upon this photograph, the Solana cottage at that time
appeared to be a front gabled, rectangular structure. Former Paraiso resident Josh Rutkoff
noted that this cottage was smaller and featured less architectural detailing than many of
the other cottages (Rutkoff 2004). The current owner, John Thompson of Thompson
Holdings, suggests that this cottage, along with Hillside, Outlook, and the Palm Court
Cabins, may have been transported onsite in the late 1960s from their original location on
the Fort Hunter-Liggett Military Reservation (Thompson 2004). Due to its lack of
historic integrity and architectural merit, this structure appears to have been non-
significant.

Hillside Cottage

One historic photograph depicting the Hillside cottage was found during research for this

report. This photograph, taken circa 1900, shows Hillside as a small side gabled cottage.
The entry was centrally placed, and covered by a shed roofed porch. A more recent
photograph, taken in the 1990s by Josie Lopez, Paraiso Office Manager, depicts the rear
portion of this structure. Based upon this photograph, Hillside Cottage at that time
appeared to be a front gabled, rectangular structure. Former Paraiso resident Josh Rutkoff
noted that this cottage was smaller and featured less architectural detailing than many of
the other cottages (Rutkoff 2004). The current owner, John Thompson of Thompson
Holdings, suggests that this cottage, along with Solana, Outlook, and the Palm Court
Cabins, may have been transported onsite in the late 1960s from their original location on
the Fort Hunter-Liggett Military Reservation (Thompson 2004). Due to its lack of
historic integrity and architectural merit, this structure appears to have been non-
significant. '

Spreckels Cottage

This cottage was originally constructed by Claus Spreckels for his own use at the Paraiso
Springs. A sign above the lintel of the front door read “Spreckels.” The roof of the
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structure consisted of two hipped sections of shallow pitch, with narrow eaves. Red
composition shingles were used to surface the roof. Horizontal wooden shiplap siding
was utilized for the exterior of the structure. The exterior walls were painted white.
Based upon available photographic records, the windows were wooden framed, in a
double hung sash configuration. This structure appears in a historic photograph of the
Paraiso Springs, taken circa 1900. Based upon available documentation the Spreckels
cottage appears to have been constructed circa 1890s; however it is difficult to verify this
due to the lack of historical documentation. No major modifications were evident based
upon historic photographs of the exterior; however some restoration and reconstruction
work has been performed on the cottage, including the back porch (Reyes 2004). The
Spreckels Cottage could be said to have retained some degree of historic integrity, as well
as its association with Claus Spreckels, up until the time of demolition. Based upon this
association, this structure appears to have had a high level of potential significance.

Palm Court Cabins

Palm Court consisted of six very similar cabin structures, with associated outbuildings
including a bathhouse and pumphouse. The Palm Court cabins had front gabled roofs of
shallow pitch, with moderately wide extending eaves. Ship-lap horizontal wooden siding
was used for the exterior walls, which were painted a dark brown. Small sun-decks were

attached to the front of each Palm Court cabin, reached by wooden steps. Each cabin-

contained a carpeted bedroom, a kitchen with gas stove and tile floor, and a bathroom
with a toilet and shower. The current owner, John Thompson of Thompson Holdings,
suggests that these cabins, along with the Solana, Outlook, and Hillside Cottages, may
have been transported onsite in the late 1960s from their original location on the Fort
Hunter-Liggett Military Reservation (Thompson 2004). Due to their lack of historic
integrity and architectural merit, these structures appear to have been non-significant.

Table 2: Summary of Structures Demolished in 2003

Structure Original? | Replaced/ Architectural Level of Potential
Altered? Style Significance
Evergreen Cottage Yes Altered Victorian High
Brightside Cottage Yes Altered Colonial Moderate
Monterey Cottage Yes Altered Colonial Moderate
Cyprus Cottage Yes Altered Rusticated Moderate
National Folk
Romie Cottage Yes Altered Folk Victorian | Moderate to high
Buena Vista Cottage Yes Altered Victorian High
Antlers Cottage Yes Altered Folk Victorian Moderate
Pioneer Cottage Yes Altered National Folk Low to Moderate
Outlook Cottage No Replaced circa | Vernacular Non-significant
1960s
Solana Cottage No Replaced circa | Vernacular Non-Significant
1960s
Hillside Cottage No Replaced circa | Vernacular Non-Significant
1960s '
Spreckels Cottage Yes Altered National Folk High
Palm Court Cabins (6) | Yes Possibly Vernacular Non-Significant
moved to the
property circa
1960s
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Structures Burned, Flooded, or Otherwise Removed Prior to 2003

During the 120-plus years that Paraiso Springs has been operated as a commercial resort,
many structures have been constructed and subsequently demolished or destroyed by
fires, flooding, or in order to make way for newer developments. By the 1890s, Paraiso
constituted its own independent community. Outside the springs themselves, private
residences were constructed. The springs had their own post office, and even their own
school (Vera 1970c). Surrounding enterprises such as the Olson Ranch, along Paraiso
Springs Road, were closely interwoven into what had become a small village. Several
structures are pictured in historic photographs and noted in historic documentation of the
Paraiso Springs. These include the Hotel, which was an elaborate Victorian, and
considered both comfortable and luxurious until it was destroyed in the 1928 fire, the
Annex, which contained many additional rooms for the Springs’ numerous patrons, and
the Hot Soda Bathhouse, with a glass atrium in the roof. Additional smaller structures
which did not survive into the recent present include the “Hermitage” Cottage, the
“Wayside” Cottage, and many individual cabins.

Mineral Springs at Paraiso Springs

Although supplemented by natural beauty, as well as constructed improvements, the hot
and warm mineral springs are what originally drew people to Paraiso, from Native
Americans in prehistoric times, to the Spanish Missionaries, to modern visitors. There
are many separate hot or warm springs identified at Paraiso Springs, some of which are
no longer running. These springs were known as: Arsenic, Iron, Sulphur 1, Sulphur 2,
Sulphur 3, the Warm Soda Springs, Vasquez, and the Pump House Well. These hot and
warm mineral springs are pumped and used to fill the bathhouses as well as both the
Olympic sized swimming pool and the “conversation” pool. In addition there are cold
mineral springs, and other sources of cold fresh water which supply wells for drinking
and general purposes.

EVALUATION FOR SIGNIFICANCE

National Register Criteria

The National Register of Historic Places was first established in 1966, with major
revisions in 1976. The register is set forth in 36 CFR 60 which establishes the
responsibilities of the State Historic Preservation Officers (SHPO), standards for their
staffs and review boards, and describes the statewide survey and planning process for
historic preservation. Within this regulation guidelines are set forth concerning the
National Register of Historic Places (36 CFR 60.6). In addition, further regulations are
found in 36 CFR 63-66, 800, and Bulletin 15 which define procedures for determination
of eligibility, identification of historic properties, recovery, reporting, and protection
procedures.

The National Register of Historic Places was established to recognize resources
associated with the accomplishments of all peoples who have contributed to the country's
history and heritage. Guidelines were designed for Federal and State agencies in
nominating cultural resources to the National Register. These guidelines are based upon
integrity and significance of the resource. Integrity applies to specific items such as
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. Quality of
significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering and culture is
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present in resources that possess integrity of location, design, setting, materials,
workmanship, feeling, and association, and meet at least one of the following criteria:

a. that are associated with events that have made a significant
contribution to broad patterns of our history;

b. that are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past;

c. that embody distinctive characteristics of type, period, or method of
construction, or that represent the work of master, or that possess high
artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity
whose components may lack individual distinction; ‘

d. that have yielded, or are likely to yield, information important in
prehistory or history.

Integrity is defined in Bulletin 15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for
Evaluation, (U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service 1982) as:

the authenticity of a property's historic identity, evidenced
by the survival of physical characteristics that existed
during the property's historic or prehistoric period. If a
property retains the physical characteristics it possessed in
the past then it has the capacity to convey association with
historical patterns or persons, architectural or engineering
design and technology, or information about a culture or
peoples.

There are also seven aspects of integrity which are used. These aspects are:

o A (;5". 1. location 5. workmanship
o o 2. design 6. feeling
Lo 3. setting 7. association

4, materials

The Paraiso Springs complex is not currently listed on the National Register of Historic
Places. However, the complex appears to be potentially eligible under criteria A and B
listed above.’ The historic Paraiso Hot Springs meets criterion A as a good example of the
popularity of the use of hot springs for their curative properties, and is also closely
associated with the Mission Soledad and the early Catholic Church in California. The
Paraiso Springs also appear to be potentially eligible for inclusion in the National
Register under criterion B listed above. Several people of historic significance, both local
and regional, are associated with the Springs. These include Father Sarria of Soledad
Mission, Charles T. Romie, Captain J. G. Foster founder of the Cliff House in San
Francisco, and Claus Spreckels, who had his own personal cottage built at the springs.
Ade Socirean oq CEEA
California Register of Historic Resources Criteria

A cultural resource is considered "significant" if it qualifies as eligible for listing in the
California Register of Historic Resources (CRHR). Properties that are eligible for listing
in the CRHR must meet one or more of the following criteria:

1. Association with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the
United States;

2. Association with the lives of persons important to local, California, or
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national history;

3. Embodying the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method
of construction, or representing the work of a master, or possessing high
artistic values; or

4. Has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important to the
prehistory or history of the local area, California, or the nation.

A property may be automatically listed in the CRHR if it is formally determined eligible
for the National Register of Historic Places. Properties that are formally determined
eligible for the NRHP are those that are designated as such through one of the federal
preservation programs administered by the California Office of Historic Preservation (i.e.,
the National Register, Tax Certification, and Section 106 review of federal undertakings).

The CRHR interprets the integrity of a cultural resource based upon its physical
authenticity. An historic cultural resource must retain its historic character or appearance
and thus be recognizable as an historic resource. Integrity is evaluated by examining the
subject's location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. If the
subject has retained these qualities, it may be said to have integrity. It is possible that a
cultural resource may not retain sufficient integrity to be listed in the National Register of
Historic Places yet still be eligible for listing in the CRHR. If a cultural resource retains
the potential to convey significant historical/scientific data, it may be said to retain
sufficient integrity for potential listing in the CRHR.

The Paraiso Springs are not currently listed on the California Register of Historic Places.
However, the springs appear to be potentially eligible for listing under criteria 1 and 2 as
described above. The Paraiso Hot Springs were owned and utilized by the Soledad
Mission. As such they are associated with the earliest phases of European settlement in
California, and with early missionary activities of the Catholic Church, a significant and
influential institution in the history of the local area, California, and the United States.
Thus the Paraiso Springs appear to be potentially eligible for criterion 1. Several
Personages of local and regional historic importance are associated with the Springs.
These include Father Sarria of Soledad Mission, Charles T. Romie, Captain J. G. Foster
founder of the Cliff House in San Francisco, and Claus Spreckels, who had his own
personal cottage built at the springs. Thus the Paraiso springs appear to qualify as
potentially eligible for listing under criterion 2 as described above.

Monterey County Register of Historic Resources

Section 18.25 of the County of Monterey’s Ordinance on Building and Construction
describes an historic resource as “...any structure, object, fence, site, or portion of a site
which has a significant historic, archaeological, architectural, engineering or cultural
value, real property or improvement thereon such as a structure, archaeological
excavation, or object that is unique or significant because of its location, design, setting,
materials, workmanship, or aesthetic feeling and is designated as such by the Board of
Supervisors pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter.” Properties that are eligible for
listing in the Monterey County Register of Historic Resources must meet one or more of
the following criteria:

A. Historical and Cultural Significance
1. The resource or district proposed for designation is particularly

representative of a distinct historical period, type, style, region, or
way of life.

25




2. The resource or district proposed for designation is, or contains, a type
of building or buildings which was once common but is now rare.

3. The resource or district proposed for designation was connected with
someone renowned.

4. The resource or district proposed for designation is connected with a
business or use which was once common but is now rare.

5. The resource or district proposed for designation represents the work of
a master builder engineer, designer, artist, or architect whose talent
influenced a particular architectural style or way of life.

6. The resource or district proposed for designation is the site of an
important historic event or is associated with events that have made a
meaningful contribution to the nation, state, or community.

7. The resource or district proposed for designation has a high potential of

yielding information of archaeological interest.

B. Historic, Architectural, and Engineering Significance

1. The resource or district proposed for designation exemplifies a
particular architectural style or way of life important to the county.

2. The resource or district proposed for designation exemplifies the best
remaining architectural type of a community.

3. The construction materials or engineering methods used in the resource
or district proposed for designation embody elements of outstanding
attention to architectural or engineering design, detail, material, or
craftsmanship.

C. Community and Geographic Setting

1. The proposed resource benefits the historic character of the community

2. The unique location or singular physical characteristics of the resource
or district proposed for designation represents an established and
familiar visual feature of the community, area, or county.

3. The district is a geographically definable area, urban or rural possessing
a significant concentration or continuity of site, buildings, structures, or
objects unified by past events, or aesthetically by plan or physical
development.

4. The preservation of a resource or resources is essential to the integrity
of the district.

An improvement, natural feature, or site may automatically qualify as an historical
resource and any area within the County may be designated a historic district if such
improvement, natural feature, site, or area meets the criteria for listing on the National
Register of Historic Places or the California Register of Historic Resources.

The Paraiso Springs are currently listed on the Local Official Register of Historic
Resources for Monterey County. The current property owner states that there is some
confusion regarding the Paraiso Springs Complex being placed on the County listing, as
no record of consent can be documented.

IMPACTS OF THE DEMOLITIONS AND PROPOSED PROJECT

Eighteen structures of varying levels of significance were demolished in November of
2003. Of the eighteen, nine were potentially significant to varying degrees. (See Table 2,
page 22.) All of these potentially significant structures had varying levels of repair,
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alteration, and/or modification over the years. Three highly significant structures were
demolished, the Evergreen Cottage, the Buena Vista Cottage, and the Spreckels Cottage.
Five moderately significant structures were demolished, the Brightside Cottage, the
Monterey Cottage, the Cyprus Cottage, the Romie Cottage, and the Antlers Cottage. In
addition, one structure of low to moderate significance, the Pioneer Cottage, as well as
nine non-significant structures were destroyed. The proposed plans (see page 1,
Description of the Proposed Project) call for the demolition of the remaining existing

_ structures on the property. However, the remaining structures are historically non-
A% significant, and their demolition will have no significant impact. LA
Y _'\‘ i

s
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\ N CONCLUSION AND MITIGATION RECOMMENDATIONS oo &
Paraiso Hot Springs, located in Monterey County, was evaluated for” historical and
archaeological resources in 2004. The complex is not currently listed on the California
Register of Historic Resources or the National Register of Historic Places; however, it
appears to be potentially eligible for inclusion in both of these registers. The Paraiso Hot
Springs are closely associated with the Soledad Mission, as well as several personages of
local and regional historic importance, including Father Sarria of Soledad Mission,
Captain J. G. Foster of the Cliff House in San Francisco, Charles Romie, and Claus
Spreckels. The natural springs themselves are the primary existing elements of historical
significance. Recommendations for mitigation of this project are included below:

Mot CEGA. JiscusEic

Mitigation

Q Mitigation recommendations are made below for the impacts of the 2003 demolition and
\,b future impacts associated with the proposed project. Recommendations for this project
o pacts associated v Toposed project

e Although the existing structures are historically non-significant, when
«s- demolition of the existing structures occurs, historical/ archaeological TR
Yoot monitoring should be carried out. Photographic and other documentation SPEAY
U;\,\O of the older components in the rear of the otherwise modern lodge is

; recommended.
N

e The resort complex should be constructed in a historical style, ;7 75 -
appropriate to the historic associations of the springs with the California LGRS O S
n missions. Examples of appropriate historical styles would include the ™
Mission Style, Spanish Eclectic, or Spanish Colonial Revival Styles of ‘
architecture. Appropriate historical design should be determined through . ¢0 "
consultation with the planning department, or design review committee. oPA

e Much of the landscaping at the Paraiso Springs resort can be considered a )
supporting element which adds to the historic integrity of the complex. ~ 4<m i
» Wherever possible the historic landscaping, including the palm trees, oak

trees, evergreen trees, and succulents should be maintained and integrated
into the new resort complex.

e An interpretive exhibit including a display of historical items and
photographs should be created which will document the history of the
Paraiso Springs. This display should be prominently placed within the
new hotel lobby, or other appropriate location on-site. In addition,  -uie"
display of historic themes or elements outside the hotel, throughout the L
grounds of the complex is also recommended. An example of this is :
provided by the California State Park adobes in the City of Monterey.
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e Due to the recorded presence of Native American activities in the vicinity
of the springs, as well as the possibility of the existence of subsurface
cultural deposits from early historical use of the springs, archaeological
monitoring should be carried out during all earthmoving activities on the
property.
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APPENDIX A: QUALIFICATIONS




The National Park Service has outlined the requirements for cultural resource
professionals in 36 CFR Part 61. Thus, the following standards are based upon these
National Park Service requirements with some modifications for local cultural resource
specialists. In order to qualify as a professional historian, the minimum professional
qualifications in history are a graduate degree in history or a closely related field; or a
bachelor's degree in history or closely related field plus one of the following:

1. At least two years of full-time experience in research, writing, teaching,
interpretation, or other demonstrable professional activity with an academic
professional institution, historic organization, agency, or museum.

2. Substantial research and publication in the field of history.

3. Registered professional historian with the California Committee for the
Promotion of History (CCPH).

Dr. Cartier is listed in the State of California as having professional qualifications in
history and architectural history, as he holds a Bachelor's degree, a Master's degree, and a
Ph.D. in anthropology, a field closely related to history. He has 23 years of full-time
experience in research, writing, and interpretation of cultural and historical resources. Dr.
Cartier has authored and co-authored several notable historical publications for the central
California area, including: The Saint Patrick's Seminary Historic Trash Site (1997); Villa
Torino: Historic Archaeology Phase 1 Excavations (1994);, Evaluation of Cultural
Resources and Determination for National Register Eligibility for the Buena Vista Adobe
Project (1994);, The Old Stone Building: Its History and Archaeology (1986); The
Archaeological Investigations at CA-MNT-1243H: The Estrada Adobe in Monterey,
California (1985) and The Old Monterey County Jail (2000). Each of these works
involved extensive research and evaluation of historical cultural resources. He was
originally trained in historic research and historic archaeology by Professor Frank Hole of
Rice University in the 1970s and published the monograph Part I, History of the
McCormick League and Areas Adjoining the San Jacinto Battleground (1972).

Dr. Cartier has also carried out historic structure photodocumentation for many projects
in the Bay area. These projects have included both medium and large format photography
in accordance with guidelines outlined by local agencies and/or following the
photographic standards of the Historic American Buildings Survey (HABS). He has
taught field methods in archaeology since 1975, with several studies of local historic
structures and deposits.




APPENDIX B: MAPS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY
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STRUCTURES AT PARAISO SPRINGS
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APPENDIX C: HISTORIC PHOTOGRAPHS
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Photo 1':‘ Paraiso éprmg cplx, circ 195, silc;wiﬁilg‘\dév;ﬁ;(;m drive of the
Annex surrounded by palm trees. Original photo at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 2: Paraiso pring circa 1900, owin an overview with pa trees.
Original photo at Paraiso Springs.




Photo 3: Overview of the Paraiso Spring cplex, witthe Annex
roof in the center. Original photo at Paraiso Springs
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Photo 4: Partial overview of Paraiso Springs circa 1900, showing (L-R) roofs
of Buena Vista, Romie, and Cyprus Cottages, and on right edge, Monterey
and Brightside Cottages. Original photo at Paraiso Springs.
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o Springs, circa 1900. Original photo at
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Photo 6: Claus ’S.preckels at Parais
Paraiso Springs.
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ttages in the center, and the hotel on the right.
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Photo 9
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Photo 10: Warm Springs School, the first schoolhouse at Paraiso Springs, built in the
1880s. From a print at Paraiso Springs; original photo owned by Lloyd Olson.
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Photo 11: May, 1912, of the second Paraiso School building, which was located on
Paraiso Road near Clark Road. Pictured, left to right after the first boy, who has not
been identified: Walter McGowan, Lloyd Olson, Dick Cross, Harry Kubik, William

Kubik, and Miss Fitzgerald. From a print at Paraiso Springs; original photo owned
by Lloyd Olson.




Photo 12: Artist’s sketch of Paraiso prings, circa 1880s. riinal photo at
Paraiso Springs.

ANGELO RAMOS drove l,he s!agecoach-mlo ‘Pardiiso

Photo 13: Paraiso stage, circa 1901, dnven by Angelo Ramos. Photo ﬁ‘om
newspaper article (Vera 1970b); courtesy Monterey County Parks.
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Photo 16: The Annex, shown on a colorized oétcard published by
Britton & Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso Springs.

Photo 17: The Famous Gossip Oaks, shown on a cblofized postcard
published by Britton & Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso
Springs.
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-sParaiso Hot Springs,
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ht018: Wnderl ot Soda Baths. Colorized otcd pulishd by
Britton & Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 19: Redwood cotte, from colorized postcard pubfished by Britton &
Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 20: Mineral Swng Pool o ty feet long. Colorized posar
published by Britton & Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 21: Mineral pool shortly after its construction. Original photo, donated
by John DeMers, at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 22 Palm Garden in Hotel Grounds, color_izd card ublie
Britton & Rey of San Francisco. Original at Paraiso Springs.

Photo 23: Iron pting near the Annex, at he rear of the mineral baths.
Original photo, donated by John DeMers, at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 24: Circa 1900, of Arsenic Spring
DeMers, at Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 25: Soda Bath Hous pch and hotel, circa 00. Original photo at
Paraiso Springs.
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Photo 28: Charles Romie shown in newspaper photo of Monterey County
Supervisors, from Resources of Monterey County & Midwinter Fair Edition of the
Gonzales Tribune, 1894. Pictured, left to right: J. A. Trescony, C. T. Romie, H.
Samuels, J. T. Porter, and T. J. Fields. Courtesy of Monterey City Library, California
History Room.

C-16




Photo 29: Pedro Zabala, from Guinn (1903). Used by permissi from onterey
County Historical Society.
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APPENDIX D: CURRENT AND RECENT PHOTOGRAPHS




CURRENT PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE COMPLEX
March 2004




Phot

02: View of oola

and surrounding landscaping from perimeter road.
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Photo 4: Vof the seniSrigs between palm tree and water ton
the right. and terraced hillside on the left.
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Photo 5: View of canopy shelter over the Sulphur Springs.

Phozo 6: View o
room.

f the fence enclosure around Hot Bath building and dressing
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Photo 8: View of the Recreation Room and a joi 'n lawn.




Photo 9: View of the “Conversation Pool”.
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Photo 12:
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Photo 14: View of wooden canopy over the Old

IS,

as.




Phoo 16: View of the Loge Frm the north. Note large briék éhilﬁney.

D-8







- PR

Phbto 19: View of deck and southern/ half of the front fagade of the Lodge.
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Photo 22: View of brick wing on the eastern idofthéLodgé.
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Photo 23

Photo 24: View of upper living room. Note sliding panels along wall.
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Photo 26: Detail of brick fireplace in the lower living room.
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Photo 28: Interior view of snackbar in the Lodge.
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Photo 32: View of ﬁeesd efrigerato in kithn.
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Photo 36: Detail of "sil—cem " foundation in rear of lodge.

D-18




P Court area.

iew of bathrooms presently extant in
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oo 37

iew of front fagade of workshop.
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Photo 38
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